Maine State Library
Maine State Documents

Finance Authority Documents State Documents

12-2012

Fiscal Year 2012 Annual Report of the Finance
Authority of Maine

Finance Authority of Maine

Follow this and additional works at: http://digitalmaine.com/fame docs

Recommended Citation

Finance Authority of Maine, "Fiscal Year 2012 Annual Report of the Finance Authority of Maine" (2012). Finance Authority
Documents. Paper 1.
http://digitalmaine.com/fame_docs/1

This Text is brought to you for free and open access by the State Documents at Maine State Documents. It has been accepted for inclusion in Finance

Authority Documents by an authorized administrator of Maine State Documents. For more information, please contact statedocs@maine.gov.


http://digitalmaine.com?utm_source=digitalmaine.com%2Ffame_docs%2F1&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
http://digitalmaine.com/fame_docs?utm_source=digitalmaine.com%2Ffame_docs%2F1&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
http://digitalmaine.com/statedocs?utm_source=digitalmaine.com%2Ffame_docs%2F1&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
http://digitalmaine.com/fame_docs?utm_source=digitalmaine.com%2Ffame_docs%2F1&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
http://digitalmaine.com/fame_docs/1?utm_source=digitalmaine.com%2Ffame_docs%2F1&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
mailto:statedocs@maine.gov

THORITY OF MAINE

Annual Report

Fiscal Year 2012



TAB 1




Tab 1:

Tab 2:

Tab 3:

Tab 4:

Tab 5:

Table of Contehts

FAME programs and services

Description of businesses assisted, including jobs
created and retained ‘

Natural resource-based business activity
Description of student financial assistance provided

FAME Fiscal Year 2012 Independent Audit Report



TAB 2




AUTHORITY OF MAINE

Business & Education
at Work for Maline

Finance Authority of Maine

Business & Education Divisions
Programs and Services

FY 2012



Mission Statement

The Finance Authority of Maine provides innovative financial solutions to help
Maine citizens pursue business and educational opportunities.

_ Business Division
Programs and Services

Credit Enhancement
Risk Reduction

Commercial Loan Insurance Program: Loan insurance helps cover a bank's credit
risk. For a business, it may mean the difference between obtaining a loan or
going out of business or never getting the opportunity to start a business. Loan
insurance is available for almost any prudent business activity, and insures up to
90 percent (100 percent for veterans) of a loan to a maximum FAME insurance
exposute of $4,250,000. This maximum insurance amount is set at least annually
in accordance with FAME’s Direct Loan and Loan Insurance Credit Policy. For
FY 2012, the maximum amount was $4,750,000. This was reduced in September
2012, however, to $4,250,000. In FY 2012, FAME made a total of $4,325,122 in
payments on its loan insurance obligations for twenty three separate defaults and
liquidations. This constituted 5.13 percent of FAME’s total mortgage insurance
- obligations. '

Major Business Expansion Program: Long-term credit-enhanced (through loan
insurance) financing up to $25,000,000 at taxable bond rates for businesses
creating or retaining a minimum of 50 jobs.

Raie Reduction

Linked Investment Programs for Agricultural Enterprises: Enables a qualified
borrower to obtain a 2 percent interest rate reduction on bank loans up to

$200,000 for agricultural businesses.

Linked Investment for Commercial Enterprises: Enables a qualified borrower to
obtain a 2 percent interest rate réduction on bank loans up to $200,000 for non-
agricultural businesses.




Direct Loans

General Purpose

Economic Recovery Loan Program: Provides subordinate or gap financing to
businesses affected by their current economic situation.

Intermediary Relending Program: Using funds borrowed from U.S. Department
of Agriculture’s Rural Development, assists small businesses located in
designated rural areas by providing up to $250,000 or no more than 75 percent if
project financing used for gap financing.

Focused Purpose

Nutrient Management Program: Provides 2 percent fixed rate loans up to
$350,000 to construct and improve manure waste management disposal sites.

Qil Storage Facility and Tank Replacement Program: Provides businesses with
low-interest fixed rate loans for removal, replacement and disposal of above-
ground and underground commercial oil storage tanks and associated piping.
Also available to companies purchasing and installing vapor recovery systems.

Regional Economic Development Revolving oan Fund Program for Day Care:
Provides quality childcare projects with loans up to $100,000 for physical site

improvements.

Partner-Focused Purpose (FAME prbvides services such as: contractor management,
loan underwriting and servicing, fund management, as well as board administrative
support)

Department of Agriculture - Agricultural Marketing Loan Fund (AMLF):
Provides 5 percent fixed-rate loans to natural resource-based businesses that
employ new and innovative technologies and processes in order to improve,
expand and enhance the manufacturing, marketability, and production of Maine-
made agricultural products.

Department of Agriculture - Potato Marketing Improvement Fund Program
(PMIF): Provides 5 percent fixed-rate loans to businesses for the construction
and/or retro-fit of potato packing and storage facilities. Funds may be used for
new construction or improvements to storage and/or centralized packing facilities,
as well as for the acquisition of packing, sizing, washing and drying equipment.
In addition, PMIF funds may be used to fund programs that improve the
economic viability of the potato industry; such improvements may include
irrigation equipment and water source development projects.




Efficiency Maine Trust - Energy Conservation Loan Program: Provides
businesses with 1 percent fixed rate loans up to $35,000 for energy saving
projects that improve energy efficiency in Maine workplaces.

mPower - Kim Wallace Adaptive Equipment Loan Program Fund: Provides
individuals and businesses with direct loans up to $100,000 with low-interest
rates. This program provides assistance to individuals and businesses for the
purchase, construction or installation of any product or equipment that allows an
individual to become more independent within the community; provides mobility;
promotes productivity; or improves quality of life. Businesses may use loan
funds to facilitate compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

Revenue Bonds

Revenue _Obligation Securities Program:  Provides an opportunity to
manufacturing businesses to access the tax-exempt bond market for funds to build
and/or acquire real estate or machinery and equipment using Tax Exempt
Industrial Revenue Bonds issued by FAME.

Smart Bond Program: Long-term fixed rate taxable bond financing on loans up to
$4,250,000 for real estate and machinery and equipment acquisitions with FAME
credit enhancement.

Smart-E_Bond Program: Tax-exempt interest rate bond financing for
manufacturing borrowers. FAME exposure to any one relationship may not
exceed $4,250,000.

Equity Capital

Maine Economic Development Venture Capital Revolving Investment Program:
Allows FAME to invest as an equal partner with others in eligible private venture
capital funds to support emerging and early-growth businesses in Maine.

Maine Seed Capital Tax Credit Program: FAME may authorize state income tax
credits of 60 percent to qualified investors for the cash equity they provide to
eligible Maine businesses. Investments may be used for fixed assets, research or
working capital. A refundable tax credit of 50 percent is available for
investments in eligible businesses by private venture capital funds. Note: This
program is approaching its statutory cap of $30 million in total tax credits that
FAME may issue.

Maine New Markets Tax Credit Program: Modeled after the federal tax credit,
this state program is designed to attract investment in economically distressed
areas of Maine. An allocation of tax credits may be provided for businesses that
invest in “qualified community development entities.” The credit is equal to



39 percent of the qualified amount invested, and is spread over a seven-year
period, with 7 percent allowed in year three, and 8 percent in each of years four
through seven. The credit may not be taken in the first two years after investment.
The maximum aggregate amount of tax credit authority is set forth at $250
million and the amount of tax credits claimed per fiscal year limited to $20
million.

Cooperative Programs

Regional Economic Development Revolving Loan Program:  Provides
subordinate and/or gap financing up to $250,000. The program is offered through
regional economic development agencies throughout the state.

Municipal Securities Approval Program:  Provides an opportunity for
municipalities to issue Tax Exempt Industrial Revenue Bonds for manufacturing
borrowers wanting to develop and/or acquire real estate or machinery and
equipment.

Natural Resource Based Business Qutreach

FAME’s Business Division annually engages in a variety of natural resource-based
business outreach efforts. This past year’s activities included again staffing a booth and
supporting Maine farmers at the annual Agricultural Products Trade Show in Augusta. We also
assisted the Department of Agriculture with one Agricultural Marketing Loan Fund loan totaling
$882,866 and one Potato Marketing Improvement Fund loan totaling $156,000. Also, through
FAME’s loan insutance, we assisted with over seventy-three loans to natural resource
companies, including the Twin Rivers paper mill in Madawaska (FAME exposure of $4,750,000
in conjunction with CIBC Canada). We also approved loan insurance to Woodland Pulp, LLC
(initially in conjunction with Machias Savings), although the loan never closed. FAME also
approved a direct loan to Great Northern Paper Company (FAME exposure of $559,490).
Natural resource-related exposure remains a continuing part of FAME’s focus. As of June 30,
2012, pearly 14.4 percent of FAME's portfolio consisted of agriculture, lumber and wood
products loan commitments and outstandings.

Recap of Past Year and Projected Activities for Ensuing Year

Over the last year, FAME continued to tap into the ideas of Maine’s community banks
through its Lenders’ Advisory Group. Representing lending institutions of all sizes, geographic
locations, and levels of FAME usage, the Lenders’ Advisory Council has heiped FAME develop
and adapt programs to assist lenders in providing loans to their customers. In this time of
continuing economic challenges, FAME consults quarterly with this group to ensure that it is
providing required resources for Maine businesses of all types. If a gap is revealed, FAME will



then use its Economic Recovery Loan Program and/or its Commercial Loan Insurance Program
creatively to meet those needs.

Legislative initiatives during the Second Session expanded the Maine New Markets
Capital Investment Program; facilitated the development of unoccupied mills; established a dairy
improvement fund; and expanded FAME's capacity to fund energy distribution projects,
including natural gas pipelines. Budget cuts unfortunately reduced FAME'’s loan insurance
reserves by $5 million but included language increasing the $35 million statutory cap to $40
million. The cuts to FAME’s loan insurance reserves total $5 million over the next two years:
$2 million in FY 12 and $3 million in FY 13. Accordingly, FAME has had to reduce the
maximum amount of insurance on any commercial relationship from $4.75 million to $4.25
million.

FAME deployed the State Small Business Credit Initiative (SSBCI) grant monies
awarded Maine by the federal government. The $13.2 million in funds will help create new
private sector jobs and spur more than $132 million in additional small-businesses lending in the
state. Also during the year, FAME helped to implement the Maine New Markets Capital
Investment Program. ‘

We will continually re-evaluate FAME’s products and services through various methods,
including the Lenders’ Advisory Council, other groups, and surveys to better understand and
react to current market needs. Based on this feedback, we will develop timely, new and
innovative products and services or modify existing ones, all in an effort to get our resources to
the marketplace in a quick, flexible and efficient manner. We also will continue to partner with
regional economic developers throughout the state. Over the past several years, FAME has
worked closely with these agencies, and has recently added 2 module to its accounting system
that enables multiplé agencies the ability to fund and track partnered loans to a mutual customer
using one set of documents and also giving the customer the option to make one payment that
will then be applied to the various loans comprising the borrower’s financing package.

FAME is committed to ensuring that the state’s resources are used most effectively for
Maine businesses. FAME utilizes reviews and evaluations as to how to make the delivery
system of our programs and services to the citizens of Maine in a more trelevant, efficient, and
seamless fashion. FAME will continue to work with other departments and agencies such as the
Department of Economic and Community Development, the Department of Agriculture, and
others to provide its expertise in commercial finance.



Higher Education Finance
Programs and Sexvices

State Funded/Supported Programs

Maine State Grant Program (MSGP)

e This is the state's basic need-based undergraduate grant program awarded to over 10,000 Maine
residents annually.
e Students apply using the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA).
Award levels:
o $1,000 for full-time study at an in-state public institution;
$1,250 for full-time study at an in-state private institution;
$500 for full-time study at an out-of-state public institution;
$1,000 for full-time study at an out-of-state private institution; and
No more than 5 percent of appropriation may be used for part-time study.

0 0 00

Quality Child Care Education Scholarship

e Need-based scholarship to support childcare providers pursuing professional development at the
postsecondary level. '

e Applicants must either currently work as a childcare provider or express their intent to become a
childcare provider. _

e Eligible recipients may receive up to $2,000 per award year.
No funding provided in 2011 or 2012 Fund for Healthy Maine budgets

Tuition Waiver Programs to Attend State Post-Secondary Educational Institutions

e Tuition waivers for children and spouses of firefighters, law enforcement officers, and emergency
medical services personnel who have been killed in the line of duty, or who died as a result of
injuries received during the performance of their duties.

e 30 new tuition waivers each year are available to students who were foster children under the
custody of the Maine Department of Health and Human Services and for adopted persons whose
adoptive parent(s) received a subsidy from the Department when they graduated from high school.

e Recipients must be Maine residents attending a school within the University of Maine System, the
Maine Community College System, or Maine Maritime Academy.

Educators for Maine

o Merit-based forgivable loans for Maine students pursuing initial certification as a teacher, including
speech pathology or a career in child development.



Students can receive $3,000/year for a total of up to $12,000 for undergraduate and $2,000/year for a
total of up to $8,000 for graduate studies.

Loans are forgiven if the recipient is an educator or speech pathologist in an eligible elementary or
secondary school or a quality child care program in the stafe of Maine.

Maine Health Professions Programs

The Maine Access to Medical Education Program, which provided Maine students access seats at
participating medical schools, is being phased-out as a result of recent legislation and the
development of Maine-based medical schools.

The Maine Health Professions Loan Program is a need-based loan of up to $25,000/year for Maine
residents pursuing post-graduate medical, dental, or veterinary education. Previously, the loan had
forgiveness provisions for graduates who return to Maine to practice primary care. For new
borrowers starting the 2011-2012 academic year, there will be no more loan forgiveness. The
program will, instead, offer tiered interest rate loans depending on the type of return service
rendered.

The Maine Dental Education Loan and Loan Repayment Program provides forgivable loans for
Maine residents who are pursuing a postgraduate education in dentistry and loan repayment for
dentists providing dental services to Mainers without regard to their ability to pay.

Doctors for Maine’s Future Medical Scholarship Program

Provides $25,000 scholarships to Maine residents attending medical school in Maine.
Schools must provide an equal number (match) of $25,000 scholarships to Maine resident students
attending the school.

Federal Programs

Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP)

The Federal Family Education Loan Programs are the single largest source of financial aid available
to Maine students and families.

FAME is the state's designated guaranty agency for this program, acting as insurer for the student
loans and paying claims to lenders when borrowers default.

Pursuant to federal legislation, no new loans were originated in this program after July 1, 2010.
FAME's porifolio of outstanding federal student loans on which it provides a guarantee as of June
30, 2012 was $689,827,520. '

GEAR UP Scholarship Program

Programs) Scholarship Fund, which provides scholarships of up to $5,550 for academic year 2011-

e FAME administers the GEAR UP (Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate

5012 to Maine students who successfully complete the GEAR UP Program in participating middle
schools and high schools and demonstrate financial need.

Tn accordance with the federal grant that funds these scholarships, the program is being phased out.
FAME will continue to fund renewals under this program until academic year 2014-2015.



NextGenCollege Investing Plan®

NextGen is Maine’s Section 529 plan, providing an opportunity for Maine regidents to save and
invest for higher education expenses while realizing tax advantages. '
Earnings grow and withdrawals are federal and Maine state income tax-free when used for qualified
higher education expenses. -'

Accounts can be set up for any child or grandchild, friend or relative regardless of income, residency
or the age of the beneficiary. _

Assets can be used at any U.S. accredited post-secondary institution, including graduate schools,
trade schools and some foreign institutions.

FAME administers the program in conjunction with the State Treasurer, who also chairs the
Advisory Committee on College Savings. Merrill Lynch is the current Program Manager.

The Harold Alfond College Challenge provides a $500 grant to Maine resident babies to start a
NextGen account, regardless of family income. There are currently 16,045 Alfond accounts. -
FAME provides a $200 Initial Matching Grant to Maine families to start a NextGen account opened
after Jan. 1, 2011.

Effective for Maine accounts opened for new beneficiaries on or after January 1, 2011, FAME
provides a one-third maich of contributions made during the first two years of account ownership, up
to a maximum grant award of $400. _
Effective for Maine accounts opened for new beneficjaries on or after January 1,2011, FAME
provides a one-time $50 grant to account owners who elect to make automatic contributions to their
accounts directly from a bank account or via payroll deduction.

NextGen’s annual Account Maintenance Fee is waived for Maine accounts (account ownex or
account beneficiary must be Maine resident).

Maine taxpayers who make contributions to a Section 529 plan may take up to a $250 tax deduction
per beneficiary. The deduction is available only to Maine taxpayers. with incomes of $100,000 oz
less ($200,000 for joint filers).

NextGen is offered to self-directed investors or through Maine-based financial advisors and
institutions. 7

Maine taxpayers may direct-deposit their Maine income tax refunds into a NextGen account.

College Access and Financial Education (CAF. E)

FAME’s College Access and Financial Education (CAF E) Team is committed to providing comprehensive
college access and financial education services to students and schools throughout the state of Maine.
FAME seeks to educate students, families, counselors and advisors with a variety of college access,
financial aid, financial education and education debt management services in order to encourage higher
education aspirations and attainment in Maine.

Maine College Access Challenge Grant

¢ The Maine College Access Challenge Grant, administered by FAME, provides college access and

completion services, competitive grants, and scholarships for low-income students to enroll in early
college courses.

In FY2012, FAME awarded $897,055 in competitive grants to a variety of public and non-profit
organizations in Maine.



College Access, Financial Education and Financial Aid Assistance

Tn FY12, FAME’s College Access and Financial Education team coordinated and participated in:

152 financial aid information sessions and workshops for 5,874 Maine students and families
33 training workshops for 859 counselors and advisors

83 workshops to help 998 students complete the FAFSA

80 financial literacy workshops for 2,815 students

26 college and careers fairs attended by 16,945 students

College Goal Maine

In January and February of 2012, FAME’s College Access and Financial Education team offered 73
College Goal Maine Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) completion events at
various locations across Maine.

614 students were assisted, with total attendance of 1,480.

College Goal Maine is part of a national program, College Goal Sunday, which provides families
with access to financial aid professionals who assist them in completing the FAFSA.

Financial Education and Debt Management

In FY12, FAME continued to provide proactive debt management services to Maine college students
in an attempt to lower Maine’s student loan default rate.

All “atrisk” borrowers were automatically enrolled in an early intervention default prevention
program, designed to provide them with customized repayment counseling and support. Borrowers
were contacted directly via phone, mail and e-mail throughout their grace period and were provided
with detailed information regarding the total amount of their loans, as well as the monthly payment
due. In addition, borrowers were counseled regarding the various loan repayment options,
lender/servicer contact information, with a particular emphasis on ways to avoid student loan default.
This program was suspended in FY 12. With the end of origination of new FFELP loans, FAME no
Jonger receives the information needed to effectively run the program.

Since the program’s creation in 2008, over 14,850 FAME student loan borrowers were identifted to
receive early intervention through FAME’s default prevention program.

Cohort Default Rate

s In2012, FAME continued to see a decline in its Cohort Default Rates for Maine student loan

borrowers. According to data released September 17, 2012 by the U.S. Department of Education,
FAME's federal Fiscal Year 2010 official Cohort Default Rate was 4.9%, the lowest rate for the
agency since 2005 and the third-lowest rate since 1993. By comparison, the national average for
guaranty agencies was 9.1%.

Cohort Default Rates measure the percentage of all federal Stafford Loan borrowers entering
repayment in a given federal fiscal year who default on their loans before the end of the following
fiscal year.

FAME Partners With American Student Assistance to Offer SALT

s e N S A A L L e ]



e In 2012, FAME partnered with American Student Assistance (ASA) to offer SALT, an industry
leading financial empowerment program created by ASA.

e SALT is a revolutionary new program created to improve the financial capability of college students
and alumni, and assists student loan borrowers tliroughout repayment. '

o FAME is piloting the program at seven Maine colleges and universities, including: Beal College;
Husson University; New England School of Communications (NESCOM); Thomas College;
University of Maine Presque Isle; University of Maine Augusta; and University of Southern Maine.
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PROGRAM KEY

AMLF = Agricultural Marketing Loan Fund

CLI = Commetcial Loan Insurance Program

DAYCARE = Loan made to daycare facility through Regional Economic
Development Revolving Loan Program ‘

ECLP = Energy Conservation Loan Program

EMRLP = Electronic Medical Records Loan Program

ERLP = Economic Recovery Loan Program

ERIP-Energy = Economic Recovery Loan made for energy-related purposes

ERLP-FOODPROC=Economic Recovery Loan made for food processing
ERLP-Lobster= Economic Recovery Loan made for lobster fishing

ERLP-No Smow=  Economic Recovery Loan made due to lack of snow

IRP = Intermediary Relending Program
MFPGP = Maine Food Processing Grant Program
NMLP = Nutrient Management Loan Program
PMIF = Potato Marketing Improvement Fund
UOSF = Underground Oil Storage Facility

VRIP = Venture Capital Revolving Investment Program
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BAKER{NEWMAN N OYES

Certified Pukdic Azoountanis

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directots
Finance Authority of Maine

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Finance Authority of Maine,
a component unit of the State of Maine, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the. table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Finance Authority of Maine’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. “Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit inclades consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures.in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Tn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities, the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Finance Authority of Maine, as of June 30, 2012, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 18, 2012
on our consideration of the Finance Authority of Maine’s internal control over finaneial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to deseribe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Baker Newman 8¢ Noyes, LLC
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The Board of Directors
Finance Authority of Maine

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is réquired by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board whe considers it to be an essential part of financial reportisig for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in.the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Portland, Maine Limited Liability Company
October 18, 2012 ‘



FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2012

As Management of the Finance Authority of Maine, we offer readers of the Authority’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the finaneial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012. As required, the Authority’s financial statements are presented in the manner prescribed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.34 - Basic Financial Statements and
Manggement’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments (GASB 34), as amended. Under
GASB 34, the Authority’s funds are identified as Proprietary, or Business-type, funds, Governmental funds,
and Fiduciary funds. The Authority’s funds are generally created by federal or state statute,

GASB 34 combines four of the Authority’s funds as Proprietary or Business-type: the Mortgage Insurance
Program Fund, the NextGen Administration Fund, the Higher Education Loan Purchase Program Fund, and
the Not-for-Profit Loan Servicing Program Fund. The Higher Education Loan Purchase Program Fund and
the Not-for-Profit Loan Servicing Program Fund are presented as “Other Proprietary Funds” in the basic
financial statements. The remaining funds, with the exception of the Fiduciary funds, are classified as
Governmental Funds, which. combine the Authority’s business finance-related fonds with its education
finance-related funds. In addition, the Authority manages funds, the Fiduciary funds, for other Boards or
entities either pursuant to statute or contract. These are included in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets.

Significant Highlights for the Year Ended June 30,2012

o The condition of the national and state economies and their effect on Maine businesses this past year
required the Authority to continue to maintain a significant commercial loan loss reserve, although
lower than prior year. Allowance for Losses on Insured Loans decreased $2,744,000, or 18.3%, to
$12,235,000. While the reserve is the towest it has been in the past three fiscal years, it remains
significantly ‘higher than it was five years ago when the reserve was $5,502,000. In challenging
economic periods, the demand for the: Authority’s commercial loan insurance increases as financial
institutions seek to mitigate risk by requiring the Authority’s insurance protection. As a result, the
Authority typically experiences an increase in insured loans and a higher Allowance for Losses on
Insured Loans. The Authority may, over time, pay claims on loans on which tliere are reserves. When
a claim is paid, the associated reserve is reversed. During the fiscal year, the Authority paid an
unusually high number of insurance claims.

e  The Authority entered an agreement during the year with the State of Maine’s Department of Economic
and Community Development (DECD) to administer the State Small Business Credit Initiative (SSBCI)
program, a new national program administered by the U.S. Department of the Treasury. The State of
Maine received an allotment of $13.2 million under this program, which was awarded to the DECD.
The goal of the SSBCI program is fo strengthen state programs that support lending and investments in
small businesses and small manufacturers. The DECD made use of the Authority’s existing Economic
Recovery Loan Program and Regional Economic Development Loan Program, and the Small Enterprise
Growth Fund, to achieve this goal in the State of Maine. By year end, the Authority disbursed
$1.2 miilion in loans and venture capital investments under the SSBCI program. ‘

o  During the fiscal year, the Authority developed and adopted rules for the Maine New Markets Capital
Investment Program, a new state tax credit program created by the Maine Legislature and for which it
received authority to administer on June 20, 2011. This program is modeled after the federal New
Markets Tax Credit program and applies to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2012. Designed
to attract investment in economically distressed areas, the program allows eligible investors to claim tax
credits against state taxes in amounts up to 39 percent of a project’s total cost. The Authority
administers the program in cooperation with Maine Revenue Services.



FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2012

s  Federal legislation in 2009 eliminated new student loan originations in the Federal Family Education
Loan Program (FFELP) as of July 1, 2010, effectively creating a phase-out period of the Program as
existing loans in the Program’s portfolm amortize over their repayment periods. The Authority serves
as the guarantor of these loans in Maine, which were originated by financial institutions participating in
the Program, and manages the FFELP for the U. 8. Department of Education (DE). At year-end the
Authority guaranteed approximately $690 million of student loans in the Program. Administrative fees
earned by serving as Maine’s guarantor have historically provided a source of funding for Autherity
activities such as outreach, financial education, default prevention services, and assistance to financial
aid officers at colleges. For the next few years, the Authority expects to continue realizing a revenue
stream from the existing guaranteed portfolio as the loans amortize, but loss of revenue from the FFELP
will-present-a challenge to the Authority in future years.

¢  The Authority administers The Maine College Savings Program, also known as The NextGen College
Investing Plan. Program investments experienced a slight inerease in net asset values during the fiscal
year. The market value of Program investments was sfightly over $6.0 billion at year-end, an increase
from prior year of $31.4 million, or 0.52%. These investments are owned by or credited to account
holders who have opened a college savings account. The Authority earns fees for its administration
services based on the daily net asset values of the Program investments, and administration revenues
and expenses are-accounted for in the NextGen Administration Fund.

¢  During the fiscal ‘year, the Authority signed an agreement with the U.S. Department of Education (DE)
to provide foan servicing activities for an allocation of 100,000 federal student loans in the Federal
Direct Loan Program. The Authority receives serv1cmg fees from the DE and has centracted with
EdFinancial to perform the actual loan servicing activities while the Authority provides oversight.

e The Authority’s net assets decreased by $2,019,000, or 5.3%, te $36,362,000 for the year ended
June 30, 2012. This was due primarily to recognizing a $5,000,000 expense at year-end to reflect the
return of State funding for commercial loan loss reserves to the State, as required by legislation. In
prior years, the Authority received funding in support of these reserves. The Authority returned
$2,000,000 of this funding, as required, in June 2012, and accrued a liability in the current year for the
$3,000,000 payment due by June 30, 2013. Higher revenues, primarily income from user fees, and
lower operating expenses, primarily bond interest, bond-related expenses, and provisions for losses on
loans, somewhat alleviated the large expense incurred for the required return of State funding,

Overview of the Authority

The Finance Authority of Maine was created in 1983 by an Act of the Maine Legislature (the Act); as a body
corporate and politic, and is a public instrumentality of the State of Maine. The Authority’s purpose at that
time was to provide business-related finance programs. In 1989, the Act was amended to authorize the
Authority to administer certain education-related finance programs. The Authority offers financing and loan
insurance to Maine businesses, and also offers various educational grant, loan, and loan guaranty programs
that assist students in attending institutions of higher education.

The Authority is considered a component unit of the State of Maine, and as such, its financial statements are
reflected in the State of Maine general-purpose financial statements. The Authority is a quasi-governmental
agency and not a department of the State of Maine. The Authority receives an appropriation from the State
of Maine for loan, loan repayment and grant disbursements to education customers. A small portion of the
appropriation is used for the administration of state programs.

4



FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

. June 30, 2012

Overview of Financial Statements -'

This Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial
statements. The basic financial statements include Authority-wide financial statements, fund financial
statements, and notes to the financial statements. GASB 34 requires the categorization of funds into
Proprietary, or Business-type, funds and Governmental Funds, which are then combined into the Authority-
wide financial statements. Note 1 of the footnotes to the financial statements describes the arrangement of
the funds in greater detail. '

Authority-Wide Financial Statements

The Authority-wide finasicial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Authority’s finances. The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Authority’s assets,
liabilities, and net assets, except for those funds that are classified as Fiduciary funds. The Fiduciary funds
are presented in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets, The Statement of Activities presents information
showing functional areas of the Authority and their respective revenues and expenses. The statements are
presented on anaccrual basis. ‘

The Authority-wide financial statements combine the business-type activities with the governmental
activities. Under GASB 34, business-type activities include funds that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through customer fecs and charges. Governmental activities include funds
that are supported primarily with intergovernmental revenues such as appropriations or payment of fees by
the Federal government,

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Authority’s most significant funds
and not the Authority as a whole. A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Authority’s funds can be
divided into two categories: Proprietary Funds and Governmental Funds:

Proprietary Funds — The Authority identifies four funds as Proprietary. They include the Mortgage Insurance
Program Fund, the NextGen Administration Fund, the Higher Education Loan Purchase Program Fund, and
the Not-for-Profit Loan Servicing Program Fund. The Higher Education Loan Purchase Program Fund and
the Not-for-Profit Loan Servicing Program Fund are presented as “Other Proprietary Funds” in the basic

financial statements. These funds rely on customer fees to cover a significant portion of the operational
expenses of the funds.

Governmental Funds — The remainder of the Authority’s funds, with the exception of the Fiduciary funds,
are grouped into this area. These funds are primarily supported by intergovernmental revenues such as State
of Maine appropriations and payments by the Federal government to operate the Federal student loan

guaranty program.

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — This statement presents the assets held on behalf of other Boards and
entities for which the Authority administers programs. All of these funds are listed in Note 1 to the finaneial
statements. ‘



FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2012

Overview of the Authority-Wide Financial Position and Operations

The Authority’s overall financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized below based
on information-included in the financial statements. '

Finance Authority of Maine
Authority-Wide Net- Assets
(In thousands of dollars)
Business-Type Governmental ~ Total
___Activities _ Activities __ Total Percent
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011  Change
Cash and investments $ 41,564 $ 45437 $38,877 $43,100 $ 80441 $ 88,537 (9.1)%
Notes reeeivable, net 316 277 24,810 25475 25,126 25752 (24)
Capital assets, net - 1,798 2,163 - - 1,798 2,163 (16.9)
Other assets 942 760 1.934 1,907 2.876 2.607 10.3
Total assets §_48.577 $65.621 $70.482 $110241 $119059 (74%
Accounts payable and ‘ .
acerued liabilities $ 3837 § 197 $ 474 $ 367 $ 4311 § 2274 89.6%
Unearned fee income 555 419 756 843 1,311 1,262 39
Undisbursed grant and _
scholarship finds - - 10489 11,832 10489 11,832 (114)
Allowanece for losses on _
insured commercial loans 12,235 14,979 - - 12,235 14979 (18.3)
Other liabilities 3 3 - - 3 3 0.0
Long-term liabilities:
Notes and bonds payable: .
Due within one year - - 806 805 806 805  0.1%
Due in mote than
orne year - - 707 763 707 763 (1.3)
Program funds:
Due in more than
one year - - 44,017 48,760 44.017 48,7680  (9.7)
Total iabilities 16,630 17,308 57,249 63,370 73,879 80,678 (8.9)
Net assets: .
Unrestricted net assets 17,537 21,710 450 450 17,987 22,160 (18.8)
Restricted assets 8,655 7,396 7,922 6,662 16,577 14,058 17.9
Invested in capital assets 1798 _ 2.163 - - 1.798 2163 (169
Total net asset 27.990 31.269 8.372 7112 36.362 38.381 | {5.3)
Total liabilities and ' |
net assets 544,620 $ 48577 $65.621 $70482 $110241 $119059 (74%
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (COWED)

June 30, 2012

The Authority’s total assets decreased by $8,81 8,000, or 7.4%, to $110,241,000 from the beginning to the
end of the fiscal year due primarily to the use of cash to make claim payments for insured commercial loans
and to disburse the remaining available funds in the Plymouth Waste Oil Loan Program to eligible
responsible parties for the waste motor cil disposal site in Plymouth, Maine. Also, the Authority returned
$2,000,000 in cash to the State of Maine in June 2012 and accrued an additional $3,000,000 to be paid in
2013, as previously discussed. Some of the changes in the individual line items are described below:

Cash and Investments

Cash and investments decreased by $8,096,000, or 9.1%, during the year due primarily to the use of cash to
make $4.3 million in claim payments for insured commercial loans and to disburse $2.9 mitlion of cash
remaining in the Plymouth Waste Oil Loan Program to eligible responsible parties for the waste motor oil
disposal site in Plymouth, Maine. Also, the Authority returned $2,000,000 in cash to the State of Maine in
June 2012, as previously discussed.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by $2,037,000, or 89.6%, duc primarily to accruing a
$3,000,000 payment due the State of Maine by June 30, 2013 to return prior years’ State funding for the
Authority’s commercial loan loss reserves. '

Allowance for Losses on Insured Commercial Loans

Allowance for losses on insured commercial loans decreased by $2,744,000, or 18.3%, due primarily to
claim payments of $4,340,000 made during the year for insured commercial loans, offset by reserves for new
insured loans or revised reserves for existing loans.

Long-Term Liabilities - Program Funds

The Authority receives State appropriations and funds from the issuance of State of Maine bonds to provide
loans. In most cases these funds are classified as undisbursed loans or, once a loan has been closed, as
disbursed loans. The undisbursed cash and the notes receivable could be returned to the State of Maine if the
State required the return of that funding as a result of program termination or modification. The obligation to
return the funds is identified on the balance sheet as a long-term liability, as the retumn of funds is not
anticipated within the next year. These program funds decreased by $4,743,000, or 9.7%, during the fiscal
year.,

Net Assels

The Authority’s mission is to provide access to innovative financial solutions to help Maine citizens pursue
business and higher education opportunities. When the economy is performing well the Authority usually
builds its balance sheet. In difficult economic climates, the Authority may continue to provide student and
business funding even when net assets could decrease. A strong balance sheet allows thie Authority to
continue to serve its customers particularly when they need help the most. Alternatively, the Authority could
reduce student grants and be more selective in financing troubled businesses to prevent a reduction in net
assets. The Authority tries to maintain its balance sheet to permit funding customers at the highest level
possible.



FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2012

For the year, the Authority’s net assets decreased by $2,019,000, or 5.3%. The decrease resulted primarily
from récognizing a $5,000,000 expense at year-end to reflect the retum of State funding for commercial loan
loss reserves to the State of Maitie, as discussed previously. Further details are discussed below as part of the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the Authority’s proprietary and

governmental funds. The results of operations for both the Authority’s proprietary and govemmental funds

are presented below:

Finance Authority of Maine
Authority-wide Changes in Nét Assets
(In thousands of dollars)
2012 2011  Amount
Revenues;
State funding - $ 1643 $ 1643 $§ -
Income from user fees ' 12,272 9,911 2,361
Investment income 826 759 67
Administrative revenues 4,807 5,009 (202)
Interestincome on notes receivable 16 2,523 (2,507
Other income 1,006 1,210 (204)
Grant and scholarship revenue 19987 18.642 1.345
Total revenues 40,557 39,697 860
Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 3,630 3,589 41
External loan servicing expenses 3,249 3,459 (210)
Interest Expense 16 830 (814)
Bond related expenses - 288 (288)
Provision for losses on loans 1,566 2,780 (1,214)
Grant and scholarship expenses 25879 23,552 2,327
Other operating expenses/other , 3,236 _3.769 (533)
Total expenses 37,576 38,267 (691)
Other Activity: -
Loss on termination of student loan program - (2,130) 2,130
Return of loan loss reserves to-State (5,000) - {5.000)
Total other (5000) (2.130) (2.870)
Change in net assets . $.2.019) $_(700) $(1319)

- %
23.8
8.8
(4.0)
994)
(169
—12

22

1.1
(6.1)
(98.1)
@3.7)
9.9
(14.1)

(1.8)

134.7
4%

188.4

The details of the changes are explained in the proprietary and governmental funds section titled Results of

Operations.



FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

June 30,2012 .-

Results of Operations
Proprietary Funds Resnits

The net assets of the Authority’s proprietary funds decreased by $3,279,000, or 10.5%, from the prior year.
The following table summarizes the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the
proprietary funds for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Finance Authority of Maine
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
(In thousands of dollars)

Increase/(Decrease)
2012 2011 Amount %

Operating revenue: .
Income from user fees $12,272 § 9911 § 2,361 23.8%
Investment income, HELPP - 38 (38) -
Interest income on notes receivable 16 2,523 (2,507 (99.4)
Grant revenue _2.622 2.349 273 11.6
Total revenue 14910 14,821 89 0.6
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits : 2,456 2,631 (175) 6.7)
Provision for losses on loans 1,582 2,744  (1,162) {42.3)
Interest expense - 814 (814) 0.0
Customer benefit expenses 8,514 7,259 1,255 17.3
Bond related expenses - 288 (288) -
Other operating expenses/other 2,197 2,630 (433) _(16.5)
Total operating expenses 14,749  16.366 1.617 9.9)
Operating (loss) income . 161 (1,545 1,706  (110.4)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses): '
Investment income . 518 562 44 (7.8)
State appropriations 1,000 1,600 - -
Return of loan loss reserves to State (5,000) - (5,000) -
Loss on termination of student loan program - (2,130) 2,130 -
Other income 42 348 (306) (87.9)
Total nonoperating revenue _ (3.440) (220) (3.220) 1.463.6
Change in net assets ' (3,279 (1,765) (1,514) 85.8
Net assets at beginning of year 31,269 33.034 1,765 (5.3)
Net assets at end of year $27.990 $31.2690 $(3.279 _(0.5)%



FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2012

The proprietary funds include the Mortgage Insurance Program Fund, the NextGen Administration Fund, the
Higher Education Loan Purchase Program Fund, and the Not-for-Profit Loan Servicing Program Fund. The
Higher Education Loan Purchase Program Fund and the Not-for-Profit Loan Servicing Program Fund are
presented as “Other Proprietary Funds™ in the basic financial statements. Because these programs are
classified as business-type funds, non-Program investment income and state appropriations are categorized as
non-operating revenue as required by GASB 34. In the governmental funds, these items are listed as
revenues. The Mortgage Insurance Program relies on fee revenue and investment income to provide most of
its funding for operations. The NextGen Administration Fund and Not-for-Profit Loan Servicing Program
Fund rely on fee revenue to cover operating expenses. Net Assets in the Mortgage Insurance Program Fund
are used by the Authonty to pay financial institiitions for defaulted insured loans. Net Assets in the NextGen
Administration Fund are used to fund student benefit programs, such'as grants and- scholarships, for those
who qualify for the programs. Net Assets in the Not-for-Profit Loan Servicing Program Fund and the Higher
Education I.oan Purchase Program Fund are used to fund higher education financing mltlatwes, counseling
and outreach.

Operating revenue totaled $14,910,000, an increase of .6% over prior year. Customer fee revenue accounted
for 82.3% of operating revenue, and increased $2,361,000 over prior year due primarily to higher
administrative fees earned in the NextGen Administration Fund and to fees eamed in the new Not-for-Profit
Loan Servxcmg Program Fund. The Maine College Savings Program experienced a $31.4 million, or .52%,
increase in net asset value over the prior year-and eamed $389,000 more in administration fees over the prior
year. The total net asset value of the investment funds in the Program was $6.0 billion on June 30, 2012.
The assets are owned by the account hiolders or their beneficiaries, and the Autherity eatns an administration
feeona .partian of the net assets for managing the Program. Until June 30, 2012, the assets of the Program
are identified in the State of Maine’s financial statements. In the first year of administering the Not-for-
Profit Loan Servicing Program Fund, the Authority eamned $1,731,000 in administration foes. Interest
income, accounting for less than one percent of operating revenue, was $2,507, 000 lower than prior year due
to termination of the Higher Education Loan Purchase Program toward the end of the prior year. Grant
revenue accounted for 17.6% of operating revenue and increased from the prior year by $273,000 as a result
of opening moere Harold Alfond College Challenge Grant accounts than in the prior year; each account
opened receives a one-time $500 grant from the Alfond Foundation.

Nonoperating expenses were $3,440,000, due primarily to recognizing a $5,000,000 expense at year-end to
reflect the return of State funding for commercial loan loss reserves to the State of Maine, as required by
legistation.

- Operating expenses decreased by $1,617,000, or 9.9%, from the prior year. While the allowance for loan
~ losses remains high, provisions for losses on loans decreased $1,162,000, or 42.3%, from pnor year due to
lower provision expense required to maintain an adequate allowance for the insured loans in the Mortgage
Insurance Program. A larger provision was required for fiscal year 2011 to maintain an adequate allowance
for that year. Interest expense and bond-related expenses declined to zero due to termination of the Higher
Education Loan Purchase Program toward the end of fiscal year 2011. Other operating expenses decreased
$433,000, or 16.5%, due primarily to lower marketing, consultant and auditing, and information technology
costs.

Overall, net assets of the proprietary funds decreased by $3,279,000 or 10.5%, to $27,990,000.
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE _
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED).
June 30, 2012 '

Governmental Fund Results

GASB 34 treats the presentation of the operating results differently in governmental funds. Revenue less
expense is called Change in Fund Balance rather than Change in Net Assets. Also, investment income and
appropriations are classified under Revenue, not Nonoperating Revenue. -

The Fund Balance of the Authority’s governmental funds increased by $1,260,000 or 17.7%, from the prior
year. The following table summarizes the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
for the governmental furds for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Finance Authority of Maine
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
(In thousands of dollars)
Increase/(Decrease}
2012 2011  Amownt %
Revenue: , '
State appropriations $ 643 § 643 § -~ - %
Investrent income 308 159 149 93.7
Administrative revenues 4,807 5,009 (202) (4.0)
Other income 964 862 102 11.8
Grant and scholarship revenue 17,365 16293 1,072 6.6
Total revenue 24,087 22966 1,121 49
Expenses: :
Salaries and benefits 1,174 958 216 22.5
External loan servicing expenses 3,249 3,459 (210) 6.DH
Provisions for losses on loans {16) 36 (52) (144.49)
Grant and scholarship expenses 17,365 16,293 1,072 6.6
Interest expense i6 16 - -
Other operating expenses/other 1,039 1,139 (100) (8.8)
Total expenses - 22827 21901 926 _ 42
Changes in fund balance 1,260 1,065 195 18.3
Fund balance at beginning of year 7412 _6047 1065 _116
Fund balance at end of year $.8372 $ 7012 $1.260 _l17.7%

The governmental funds include all of the Authority’s business lending programs except for the Mortgage
Tnsurance Program, which contains the loan insurance programs. Most of these programs are direct
revolving loan programs, including programs such as the Economic Recovery Loan Program and
Underground Oil Storage Program. Also, the governmental funds include afl of the education-related
programs, except for the NexiGen Administration Fund, Higher Education Loan Purchase Program Fund,
and the Not-for-Profit Loan Servicing Program Fund. This group includes the Federal Family Education
Loan Program (FFELP) Operating Fund and programs such as the Educators for Maine Loan Program, the
Maine State Grant Program, and the Maine Health Professions Loan Program. These programs are classified
as governmental funds because most of their revenue is derived from governmental seurces and not from
customer fees.
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
M June 30, 2012
Revenues for the year v?ére $24,087,000, an increase from prior year of $1,121,000, or 4.9%. This increase
came primarily from an increase of $1,072,000, or 6.6%, in grant resources.

Expenses for the year were $22-,827,000, which were higher than prior year by $926,000, or 4.2%. The
increase came primarily from larger disbursements of grants, which increased by $1,072,000, or 6.6%.

Overall, the fund balance of the governmental funds increased by $1,260,000, or 17.7%, to $8,372,000.
Debt Structure

The Authority’s operating expenses are funded primarily threugh fees for services, investment earnings, and
appropriations or other governmental contributions.

The Authority negotiated a funding agreement with the United States Department of Agriculture’s
Department of Rural Development (USDA) in a prior year whereby the Authority borrowed funds at 1.0%
and can relend the money at a higher interest rate to qualified business borrowers. The proceeds from
business-borrowers are used-to repay the USDA note and cover related operating expenses. The outstanding
balance for the USDA note was approximately $763,000 as of June 30, 2012.

The Authority also has a funding agreement from a prior year with the Maine Health Access Foundation,

whereby the Authority borrowed funds at 1.0% and can relend the money at a higher interest rate to medical
offices for converting their medical records to an eléctronic format. Ttie proceeds from borrowers are used
to repay the Foundation note and cover related operating expenses. The outstanding balance for the
Foundation note was $750,000 as of June 30, 2612,

Recent Developments

The NextGen College Investing Plan (the Program) was established in accordance with Chapter 417-E of
Title 20-A of the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated of 1964, as amended (the Act), to encourage the
investment of funds to be used for Qualified Higher Education Expenses at institutions of higher education.

The Program is designed to comply with the requirements for treatment as a Qualified Tuition Program
under Section 529 of the Interrial Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (a 529 Savings Plan). The Act
authorizes FAME to administer the Program and act as administrator of the Maine College Savings Program
Fund (the Program Fund). The Program Fund is held by the Treasurer of the State of Maine (the Treasurer),
who invests it vnder the direction of and with the advice of a seven member Advisory Committee on College
Savings, which is chaired by the Treasurer.

Pursuant to a change in Maine law which became effective September 28, 2011, Chapter 417-E of Title 20-A
of the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated of 1964 is amended to reflect that beginning July 1, 2012, the
Program Fund will be held by FAME, which shall invest it under the direction of and with the advice of the
Advisory Committee on College Savings. Until then, the Program Fund will contiriue to be held by the
Treasurer. Starting July 1, 2012, the Authority will reflect the total assets held in the Program in a private
purpose trust fund.
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE

. STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30,2012
Business-Type
ASSETS Activities

Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $15,502,870
Investments {note 2) 26,061,415
Accounts receivable 420,008
Accrued interest receivable 438,679
Notes receivable, net (notes 3 and 7) 316,542
Other assets 82,767
~ Capital assets, net (note 8) 1.797.741
Total assets $44,620.022

Unearned fee income
Undisbursed grant and scholarship funds (note 9)
Allowance for losses on insured loans (notes 4 and 5)
Other liabilities
Long:term liabilities:
Dite within one year — note payable (note 7)
Due in-more than one year - note payable (note 7)
Due in more than one year — program funds

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingent liabilities
(notes 5, 6, 10-and 12}

Net assets: :
Invested in capital assets
Restricted net assets
Unrestricted net assets (note 2)
Total net asséts

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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$ 3,836,607
555,406

12,235,279
2,956

16,630,248

1,797,741
8,654,535
17.537.498

27,989,774

$44,620,022

Governmental
Agctivities Totat
$17,754,088 § 33,25‘6,95-8
21,122,532 47,183,947
108,426 528,434
- 438,679
24,810,411 25,126,953
1,825,347 1,908,114
‘ - 1,797,741
$ 474521 § 47311128
755,939 1,311,345
10,488,833 10,488,833
- 12,235,279
- 2,956
806,048 806,048
706,685 706,685
44,016,897 _44.016.897‘
57,248,923 73,879,171
- 1,797,741
7,921,919 16,576,454
449.962 17.987.460
8.371.881 36,361,655
$65,620,804  $.110,240,8726



FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES |

F})r the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Functions/Programs:
Governmental activities:
Federal Guarantee Agency Program
Educational Grant Programs
Revolving Loan Programs
Gaining Early Awareness & Readiness
for Undergraduate Programs
Other Governmental Programs

Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
Mortgage Insurance Program
Mairne College Savings Program
Higher Education Loan Programs

Total business-type activities

Total Authority

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Charges
for
Expenses Services

$ 3,776,741 § -
10,136,399 ~
1,403,995 -

3,213,621 -
4,295.831 356.458

22.826,587 356,458
3,184,777 1,663,552

16,398,889 8,893,222
1.164.968 1.731,052

14,748,634 12,287,'826‘

$12,644,284

Other activity:
Investment income
Other nonoperating income
Fund-balance transfer to
State of Maine (note 9)

Total other activity

Change in net assets

- Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year



Program Revenues

Program Operating
Investment Grants and
Income = Contributions
$ 144,326 $ 4,880,164
- 10,136,399
9,612 1,406,840

- 3,213,621
153.8384 3,785.419
307,822 - 23,422,443
— 1,000,000

- 2,622,000

- 3,622,000

Net Revenue (Expense) and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental. Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$1,247,749 $ - $ 1,247,749
12,1:57 : 12,4_57
(_7'01 - (—70)
1,260,136 - 1,260,136
- (521,225) (521,225)
- 1,116,333 1,116,333
- 566,084 566,084
- - _1,161.192 1,161,192
1,260,136 1,161,192 2,421,328
- 517,812 517,812
- 41,689 41,689
- (5.000,000)  {5.,000.000)
- (4.440,499)  (4.440.499)
1,260,136 (3,279,307)  (2,019,171)
7.111.745 31,269,081  38.380.826
$8,371.881 $27.989.774 $36.361.655
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2012
Mortgage NextGen
Insurance Admin- Other
Program istration Proprietary
ASSETS Fund Fund Funds Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $10,499,558 $4,453,854 § 549458 $15,502,870
Investments (note 2) 13,205; 198 4,511 - 13,209,709
Accounts receivabie 31,733 216,821 171,454 420,008
Accrued interest receivable 438,679 - - 438,679
Notes receivable, net (note 3) 21,384 - - 21,384
Other assets 72,291 10.476 - 82,767
Total current assets 24,268,843 4,685,662 720,912 29,675,417
Noncurrent assets: ‘
Investments {note 2) 7,215,536 4,367,101 1,269,069 12,851,706
Notes receivable, net (note 3) 295,158 - - 295,158
Capital assets, net (note 8) 1,797,741 _ = - 1,797,741 -
Total noncurrent assets 9.308.435 4.367.101 1.269.069  14.944.605
Total assets $33,577,278 $9.052,763 $44.620.022
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
{notes 6 and 9) $ 3,438,379 § 398228 § - § 3,836,607
Unearned fee income 555,406 - - 555,406
Altowance for losses on insured loans
(notes 4 and 5) 12,235,279 - - 12,235,279
Other liabilities 2,956 - - 2,956
Total liabilities 16,232,020 398,228 - 16,630,248
Commitments and contingent liabilities
(notes 5, 6 and 10)
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets 1,797,741 - - 1,797,741
Resiricted net assets - 8,654,535 - 8,654,535
Unrestricted net assets (note 2) 15,547.517 — 1.989.981  17.537.49%8
Total net assets 17.345258 8,654,535 1.989.981 27.980.774
Total liabilities and net assets $33,577.278 $9.052.763  $1,989.981 $44,620,022

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Moﬂgage NextGen

Insurance Admin- Other
Program istration  Proprietary
Fund Fund Funds Total
Operating revenues:
Insurance premiums $ 841381 $ - 3 - § 841,381
Application and commitment fees 401,154 - - 401,154
Interest income on notes receivable 16,150 - - 16,150
Grant revenie - 2,622,000 - 2,622,000
Fee and other income (note 9) 404,867 8.893.222 1,731.052 11,029,141
Total operating revenues 1,663,552 11,515,222 1,731,052 14,909,826
Operéting expenses: '
Salaries and related benefits (note 11) 1,539,808 915,729 - 2,455,537
Other operating expenses (note 8) 559,315 969,127 1,164,968 2,693,470
Allocated operating expenses (495,965) - - (495,965)
Provision for losses on insured :
commercial loans (note 4) 1,581,559 - - 1,581,559
Scholarship expenses (note 9) . - 5,305,161 - 5,305,161
Grant expenses - 2,622,000 - 2,622,000
Matching contributions and rebates (note 9) = 586.872 - 586,872
Total operating expenses 3.184.777  10.398.889 1,164.968  14.748.634
Operating (loss) income (1,521,225) 1,116,333 566,084 161,192
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income (note 2) 417,109 100,703 - 517,812
Other income ‘ - 41,689 - 41,689
Fund balance transfer to State (note 9) (5,000,000) - - (5,000,000)
Reserve fund balance transfer from :
State (note 9) 1.000.000 - - 1,000,000
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) (3.582,891) 142,392 - (3.440,499)
Change in net assets (5,104,116) 1,258,725 566,084  (3,279,307)
Net assets at beginning of year 22.449.374 7.395.810 _1.423.897 31,269,081
Net assets at end of year $17,345258 $_8.654.535 $.1.989.981 $27.989.774

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Mortgage NextGen

Insurance Admin- - Other
Program istration Proprietary
_ Fund Fund . Funds Total
Cash flows from operating activities: ' :
Interest receipts on notes receivable $ 16,150 § - % - § 16,150
Fees received from customers 1,808,744 8,792,113 1,559,598 12,160,455
Grant revenue - 2,622,000 - 2,622,000
Payments for operating expenses (11,409) (1,502,293}  (1,164;968)  (2,738,670)
Payments to employees (1,550,921) (921,463) - {2,472,384)
Investment in notes receivable (39,498) - - (39,498)
Payments for scholarships, grants, matching
contributions and rébates - (8.514,033) - {8,514,033)
Default payments made on commercial loan
insurance _ (4,339,945) - - (4,339,945)
Recoveries received from prior commercial
lean insurance 14,822 - - 14,822
Other (payments) receipts (12.613) (1,710) - {14,323)
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities 4,174,670) 474,614 . 394,630 (3,305,426)
Cash flows from noncapital and related financing
activities: ‘
Refund to bond insurer - - (531,622) (531,622)
Interfund transactions 3,458,404 " (725,014) - 2,733,390
Other nonoperating income - 50,181 - 50,181
Funds paid to other governments (2,000,060) - - (2,000,000)
Funds received from other governments 1.000.000 - = 1.000.000
Net cash provided (used) by noncapitat and
related financing activities 2,458,404 (674,833) {531,622) 1,251,949
Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:
Acquisition of capital assets (111,280) ~ - (111,280)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Maturities and calls on investments 19,500,000 - - 19,500,600
. Sales of investments - 3,041,476 212,709 3,254,185
Purchases of investments (19,552,103)  (3,050,030) - (22,602,133)
Interest received on investments 612,151 100,703 - 712,854
Net eash provided by investing activities 560.048 92,149 212,709 864,906
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (1,267,498) (108,070) 75,717 (1,299,851)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,767,056 4,561,924 473.741 16,802,721
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $.10,499.558 $_4,453.854 §__ 549458 $_15,502,870
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

:For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Mortgage NextGen

* Insurance Admin- Other
Program istration Proprietary
Fund _Fund Funds Total
Reconciliation-of operating (loss) income to net
cash (used) provided by operating activities:
Operating (loss) income $ (1,521,225) § 1,116333 $ 566084 § 161,192
Adjustments to reconeilé operating (loss) ‘
income to-net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 476,681 - - 476,681
Provision for losses on loans 1,581,559 - - 1,581,559
Default payments made on
commercial loan guarantees (4,339,945) - - (4,339,945)
Recoveries received from prior
commercial loan guarantees 14,822 - - 14,822
. Allocated expenses (495,965) - - {(495,965)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 25,566 (101,109)  (171,454) (246,997)
Neotes receivable (39,498) - - (39,498)
Other assets (12,613) (1,710) - (14,323)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 172 (538,900) - (538,728)
Unearned fee income and other liabilities 135,776 - - 135.776

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities $_(4174670) $__ 474,614 $__394630 $_(3.305,426)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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FINANCE, AUTHORITY OF MAINE

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012
Federal.
Guaranty :
Agency Educational
Operating Grant
ASSETS Fund Fund
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $2,567,047 $ 6962
Investments (note 2) ' 6,051,343 16,971
Accounts receivable 108,426 -
Notes receivable, net (notes 3 and 7) - -
Other assets 1,989 =
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES |
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 363,582 $ -
Unearned fee income 624,700 -
Undisbursed grant and schelarship funds (note 9) - 23,515
Note payable (note 7) - -
Amounts held under state revolving loan
programs (note 9): _
State revolving loan funds disbursed - -
State revolving lean fimds undisbursed - -
Unearned income on undisbursed
revolving loar funds - -
Total liabilities 088,282 23,515
Fund balancés:
Assigned - 418
Restricted 7.740.523 -
Total fund balances 7,740,523 418
Total liabilities and fund balances $8,728,805 $_23,933

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Revolving
Fund.

$ 7,076,565
13,111,970

24,810,411
1.823.121

$ 11,798
131,239
665,015

1,512,733

26,331,396
16,946,720
642,395
46,241,296
399,375
181.396
580,771

$46.822.067



Gaining Early
Awareness &
Readiness for
Undergraduate
Programs Fund

$ 3,827,530

$.3.827.530

$ —

3,827,530

3,827,530

$.3.827.530

Other
Governmental

Funds

$4,275,984
1,942,248

237

$6.218.469

$ 99,141

5,972,773

96,386

6,168,300

50,169

_50.169

$6.218.469

Total
Governmental
Funds

$17,754,088
21,122,532
108,426
24,810,411
1,825,347

$65.620.804

$ 474,521
755,939
10,488,833
1,512,733

26,331,396
17,043,106
642395
57,248,923
449,962
1.921.919
8.371.881
$65.620.804
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
- CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues:
State appropriations (note 9)
Investment income (note 2)
Administrative revenues
Other income
Grant revenue

Total revenues

Expenses:

Operating expenses: _
Salaries and related benefits (note 11)
Other operating expenses
Allocated operating expenses
External loan servieing expenses

Interest expense

Provisian for ioan losses

Grant expense

Total expenses

Excess of revenues over (under) expenses
and change-in fund balance

Fund balanees at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,

Federal
Guarantee
Agency
Operating

Fund

$- -
144,326
4,807,253
72,911

5,024,490

413,001
114,266

3,249,474

3.776.741

1,247,749
6.492.774

31,740,523

Educational
Grant
Fund

$ —

10.136.399

10,136,399

10,136,399

10,136,399

418

$ 418

Revolving
Fund

$ -
9,612

534,208
872,632

1,416,452

35,752
495,965

15,513
(15.867)
872,632

1.403.995

12,457
568.314

$_580.771



Gaining Early
Awareness &
Readiness for

Undergraduate  Governmental

Pgoms;ﬁung
$ -

3,213,621

3,213,621

3213.621

Other

Total

Governmental

_Fupds =~ _ _Funds

$ 643,048
153,884

356,458
3.142.371

4,295,761

761,495
392,065

3.142.271

4,295.831

(70)
50.239

$ 643,048
307,822
4,807,253
963,577
17,365,023

24,086,723

1,174,496
542,083
495,965

3,249 474

15,513
(15,867)
17,364,923

22.826.587

1,260,136
7111745
$_8371.881



FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

AGENCY FUNDS

J__une 30,2012

ASSETS HELD FOR OTHERS

Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)

Investments (note 2)

Accounts receivable from Department of Education

Accrued interest receivable
Notes receivable, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Due to the U.S. Department of Education (nete 12)
Amounts held for State of Maine under revolving loan programs

Total liabilities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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$ 8,518,141
13,706,698
220,705
199,693
15,424,491

$38.060.728

$ 41,552
3,254,423
34,773,753




1.

FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2012 '
Organization and Significant Accounting Policies E
Authorizing Legislation

The Finance Authority of Maine (FAME or the Authority) was created in 1983 by the Finance
Authority of Maine Act (the Act), Title 10, Chapter 110, of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, asa
body corporate and politic, and a public (tax exempt) instrumentality of the State of Maine. In 1989, the
Act was amended to authorize the Authority’s administration of educational finance programs found in
Title 20-A, Chapters 417-E through 430-B (with the exceptions of Chapters 417-A and 418, which are
not administered: by the Authority, and 417E ~ 417F which are administered by the Authority and were
enacted in 1998 and 2003, respectively). These financial statements include all of the operations
conducted by the Authority. '

The Authority provides comiercial financing and loan insurance to Maine businesses. Also, the
Authority is authorized to carry out various programs to provide financial and other assistance to Maine
students and their parents to finance costs of attendance at institutions of higher education.

For financial reporting purposes, the Authority is considered a.componentunit of the State of Maine and
as such, the Authority’s financial statements are reflected in the State of Maine’s gencral-purpose
financial statements. The Authority isa quasi-independent agency and not-a department-of the State of
Maine. ' ' :

The financial statements also include the accounts and activities of FAME Opportunities, Inc., a
separate 501(c)3) organization formed and controlled by the Authority. The operations of FAME
Opportunities, Inc. are immaterial.

Basis of Accounting

The Authority follows the accrual basis of accounting and, accordingly, recognizes revenue as earned
and expenses as incurred.

As permitted by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Fi unds and Other Governmental Activities that Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Authority has elected not to apply Financial Accounting Standards
Board Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statements No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for
State and Local Governments, No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management ’s Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governmenis: Ornibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and
No. 34 and No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. The Authority
maintains its aceounting records and prepares its financial statements for all funds using the accrual
basis of accounting. The difference from using the modified acerual methed for governmental activities
is immaterial. Major individual governmental funds, proprietary funds and fund groups are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012

Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Structure
The following busiﬂé#s-type activities of the Authority are classified as proprietary funds:

Mortgage Insurance Program Fund

This fund consists of activities primarily relating to providing capital to a broad range of commercial
berrowers that may be denied commercial credit without the provision of the Authority’s loan insurance
to financial institutions. The Authority receives loan insurance fees from the financial institutions
{which may pass the cost to the ultimate borrewer).

NextGen Administration Fund

This fund, which was formerly known as Maine College Savings Program Fund, accounts for activities
related to the administration of the State of Maine’s Maine College Savings Program (Program), also
known as the NextGen Collége Investing Plan or NextGen, a qualified tuition program pursuant to
Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code to encourage families to invest for the qualified higher
education expenses of a designatéd beneficiary. The Authority is the administrator of the Program.

~ Included in the fund are the administrative fees received: by the Authority from some participants based

on the net asset value of accounts (Maine Administration Fee).

Also recognized in the fund are funds provided by the Alfond Scholarship Feundation and granted to
participants in the Harold Alfond College Challenge (HACC). The HACC provides a $500 grant to
each Maine resident baby named as a designated beneficiary on a NextGen account by the baby’s first
birthday. HACC grants may only be withdrawn for qualified higher education expenses defined under
Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Program, the NextGen Administrative Fund and the Maine College Savings Program Fund are
further described in note 9.

Other Proprietary Funds
The following proprietary activities of the Authority are included in other proprietary funds:

Higher Education Loan Purchase Program

This fund holds the residual net assets of the federal student loan purchase program that was terminated
by the Authority in 2011, All obligations under the program have been settled. Investment income
related to fund investments of approximately $27,000 have been reflected as investment income in other
governmental funds, Net assets in this fund are used to fund higher education financing initiatives,
counseling and outreach.

Not-for-Profit Loan Servicing Program

This fund, which originated in 2012, consists of activities related to servicing federal student loans in
the Federal Direct Loan Program. In an agreement with the U.S. Department of Education (DE), the
Authority is allocated 100,000 federal student loans on which to provide loan servicing activities. The
Authority has contracted EdFinancial to perform the actual servicing activities while the Autherity
provides oversight. The Authority receives servicing fees from the DE. Net assets in this fund are used
to fund higher education financing initiatives, counseling and outreach.
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The following governmental activities of the Authority are classified as governmental funds:

Federal Guarantee Agency Operating Fund

This fund accounts for the activities under the FFELP. The Authority, in conjunction with the U.S.
Department of Education, made educational related federal loan guarantees to eligible Maine students
and their families to attend post-secondary schoots. The Authority received revenue in fiscal year 2012
from the U.S. Department-of Education for managing the Maine FFELP portfolio. '

On March 30, 2010, H.R.4872, The Health Care and Education Reconciliation Aet of 2010 (HCERA),
was signed into law. HCERA provides that after June 30, 2010, all subsidized and unsubsidized
Stafford Loans, PLUS loans and Consolidation loans can only be made under the government’s Federal
Direct Loan Program. As a consequence, the Authority will no longer receive revenue for the
origination of FFELP loans. Additionally, as the principal balance of outstanding FFELP loans is
amo?tiz‘ed, the portfolio will decrease as will revenue associated with maintenance of the FFELP
portfolio.

Educational Grant Fund o

This fund accounts for the activities refating to providing grants to eligible undergraduate Maine
students who have the greatest financial need and who atiend private or public post-secondary
institutions of higher learning. The funding for this program-is received directly from the State of
Maine on an annual basis.

Revolving Fund

This fund primarily eonsists of the funds relating to the Authority’s administration of State of Maine
revolving loan programs. These are State programs administered by the Authority, which provide either
educational or commercial Toans on a revolving basis. This fund records the aggregate activity of these
programs. The program funding levels are derived from the State of Maine, except as follews: the
Intermediary Relending Loan Program is a Federal program; a portion of the funds in the Dental Loan
and Loan Repayment Fund are derived from a grant from Delta Dental; the Maine Health Access
Foundation Loan program funds are derived from a loan from the Maine Health Access Foundation; the
Dental Equipment Loan and Student Loan Repayment Programs use federal funds. Loans are granted
with and without interest charges depending on the program and in some cases there is also loan
forgiveness. This fund consists of funds of the following programs:

Underground Oil Storage Replacement Program

Economic Recovery Loan Program '

Waste Reduction and Recycling Loan Program

Educators for Maine Program

Health Professionals Loan Program

Dental Loan and Loan Repayment Programs

Regional Economic Development Revolving Loan Program

Plymouth Waste Oil Loan Program

Clean Fuel Vehicle Program

Intermediary Relending Program

Waste Motor Oil Disposal Site Remediation Program

Maine Health Access Foundation Loan Program :

Dental Equipment Loan and Student Loan Repayment Program
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Organization and Signifieant Accounting Policies (Continned

Gaining Early Awareness 2and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs (GEAR-UP) ,
This fund accounts for the activities relating to GEAR-UP, a need-based scholarship fund which is
funded by the U.S. Deparl:ment of Education to the Maine Bepartment of Education as grantee. FAME
administers the scholarship in accordance with a memorandum of agreement with the Maine
Department of Education. The funds are granted to qualifying students for attendance at college.

Other Governmental Funds

The Autherity administers various other governmental and educational related programs. This fund
group records the aggregate activity and reflects the combination of these programs. The State of
Maine provides program funding on an annual basis for the Higher Education Fund: FAME
Opportunities, Inc. relies on private individuals and corporations for contributions. Doctors for Maine’s
Future was funded in fiscal years 2010 and 2011. The U.S. Department of Justice’s Bureau of Justice
Assistanice funded the John R. Justice Program initially for one year in 2011. They subsequently funded
it for 2012 and the Authority has applied for the 2013 grant. The State of Maine provided funding for

‘the Food Processing Grant Program. The College Access Challenge Grant is funded by the U.S.

Department of Education. The State Small Business Credit Initiative Program is funded by the U.S.
Department of the Treasury and awarded to the Department of Economic and Community Development
(DECD) of the State of Maine. In addition, the Authority administers the program for DECD. This
fund group consists of the following:

Higher Education Fund

FAME Opportunities, Ine.

Doctors for Maine’s Future

John R. Justice Grant Program

Food Processing Grasit Program
College Access Challenge Grant
State Sinall Business Credit Initiative

Agency Funds

Additionally, pursuant t0 a contract, the Authority provides administrative, financial services support
and other services for the Kim Wiillace Adaptive Equipment Loan Program Fund Beard, the Fund
Insurance Review Board, the Nutrient Management Fund, the Payroll Processing Insurance Fund, the
Northern Maine Transmission Corporation, the Department of Agriculture for the Agriculture
Marketing Loan Fund and the Potato Marketing Improvement Fund, the Depattment of Labor for the
Occupational Safety Program Fund and the Small Enterprise Growth Board. The Authority also holds
and administers the State of Maine’s portion of the U.S. Department of Education’s Federal Student
Loan Reserve Fund, which is the property of the Federal governinent.

The Authority acts in a custodian capacity for these Funds. The resources in these Funds cannot be
used to support the Authority’s operations. These Funds are combined in the Statement of Fiduciary
Net Assets and presenied as Agency Funds,

Restriction on Net Assets

The restricted net assets of the Authority are restricted to a specific use by contract, bond indenture
and/or federal or state statutes and regulations. Financial activities and resulting account balances that
are not so restricted are presented in the Statement of Net Assets as unrestricted pet assets. The
Authority’s unrestricted net assets are generally intended for use for program related activities.
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Fund Balances

GASB No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, requires the fund
balance of governmental funds be classified based on a hierarchy of constraints imposed-on the use of
resources. The fund balances must be identified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or
unassigned.

Restricted fund balances include amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
the constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. The assigned fund balance
classification is intended to be used for specific purposes, but assigned fund balances do-not meet the
criteria to be classified as restricted.

There are no funds with fund balances classified as nonspendable, committed or unassigned. The
Aiithority considers amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for both restricted and
assigned fund balances. Assigned fund balances are reflected as unrestricted net assets on the statement
of net assets.

The fund balance of the Authority’s Federal Guaranty Agency Operating Fund, Intermediary Relending
Program (Revolving Fund) and Maine Health Access Foundation Loan Program (Revolving Fund) are
restricted. Pursuant to the Higher Education Act; the Authority may use the Operating Fund’s balance
only for guarantee agency-related activities, including student financial aid-related activities for the
benefit. of students; Pursuant to the goveming agreement with the United States Department of
Agriculture, and related regulatory instructions issued by the Department’s Farmers Home
Administration, the Intermediary Relending fund balance may be used only for program purposes,
including administration costs, technical assistance to borrowers, bad debts, repayment of debt or
lending to eligible borrowers. Pursuant to the governing agreement with the Maine Health Access
Foundation, the Maine Health Access Foundation Loan Program’s fund balance may be used only. for
program putposes, inchiding the Authority’s administrative and technical expenses:

'The fund balances attributable to the Educational Grant Fund, Educators for Maine Program (Revolving
Fund), Health Professional Loan Program (Revolving Fund), and Higher Education Program (Other
Governmental Funds) are assigned. Fund balances may be assigned by the CEQ who has statutory
power to supervise the Authiority’s administrative and technical affairs. To the extent such assignments
are utilized in the budgeting process, they are approved by the Board of Directors. The appropriation
that funds these programs generally give guidance as to what the principal of the appropriation must be
used for, but are generally silent as the treatment of any earnings on such funds. It has been the
Authority’s policy to use these earnings for the programs funded by the principal of the appropriation,
including administrative costs.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management of the Authority to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and lHabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates. The most significant
estimates utilized in the preparation of the financial statements of the Authority relate to the allowance
for losses on insured commercial loans.
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Organization and Significant Acconnting Pelicies éﬁntinued-
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purpeses of preparing the statement of cash flows for the proprietary funds, the Authority considers
certain highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents,

Investments are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses due to changes in fair values of
investments are included in investment income.

The Authority invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various
risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment

securities will occur in the near term and that such changes conld matenally affect the amounts reported
in the financial statement.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are carried at the prmclpal amount outstanding less an. allowance for losses. The
allowanice for losses on notes receivable is established through a provision for losses on notes receivable
charged to operations. Notes receivable losses are charged against the allowance when maragement
believés collectibility of the loan principal is unlikely. The allowance is an amount that management
believes will be adequate to absorb losses based on an evaluation of -collectibility and prior loss
experience.

Losses on notes receivable in the revolving loan programs are recognized by charging the amount held
under the revelving loan program llabllﬂ.‘y accounts when the notes receivable are forgiven or charged
off.

Losses on notes receivable in the agency funds are recognized by charging the amount held for State of
Maine under revolving loan programs when the notes are forgiven or charged off.

Capital Assets

The Authority’s capital assets are recorded at cost and depreciation is prov1ded on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Capital asset acquisitions that equal or exceed
$1,000 are capitalized. The Authority’s capital assets are comprised primarily of a floor of a building
owned in common and improvements thereon in Augusta, Maine and computer hardware and software.

Allowance for Losses on Insured Loans

The Authority has established an allowance to absorb probable losses on commercial loans it insures.
This aliowance is adjusted by provisions charged to operating expense and by recoveries on losses
prewously charged off. The amount of the allowance, which represents probable, but not actual losses,
is determined by management’s evaluation of the insured loan portfaho Primary considerations in this
evaluation are loss experience, the character and changes in the size of the portfolio, business and
economic conditions, the value of the collateral and the maintenance of the allowance at a level
adequate to absorb losses.
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Revolving Loan Programs

Funds received, including interest, for revolving loan programs are recorded as a liability in “amounts
held under State revolving loan programs”. '

Grants

Unrestricted grants are recorded as revenue when received. Restricted grants are recorded as revenue
upon compliance with the restrictions. Amounts received for grant programs ar¢ recorded in
“undisbursed grant funds” until they become unrestricted; at that time revenues equal to the expenses
are recognized since these grants are expenditure-driven.

Mortgage Insyrance Premiums

The Authority’s fee for insuring business loans may range from 1/2% to 2% per year of the outstanding
insured portion of the principal balance of the business loan on the loan’s annual anniversary date. Such
mortgage insurance fees received in advance of the insurance period, are deferred and are recognized as
income over the insurance period.

Application and Commitment Fees

The Authority charges a fee for the review of applications for certain types of tax-exempt bonds and for
the allocation of the state ceiling of tax-exempt ‘bond cap. The fees are taken into income when they are
no longer refundable and when the Authority has performed the service. The Authority also charges an
application and/or commitment fee on certain commercial loan insurance. Certain loans also require
that a commitment fee be charged to the borrower.

EFELP Support

The Autherity receives a percentage of the amounts collected on defaulted loans, a portfolio
maintenance fee and a defanlt aversion fee from the U.S. Department of Education (DE} as its primary
support for the administration of the FFELP. These fees are recorded as administrative revenues when
earned: An estimate of default aversion fees that will need to be repaid to DE is recorded as unearned
fee income.

Allocation of Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses are allocated to the various funds based on the estimated time spent during the
period on each program. Some funds can only be charged with a fixed amount of administrative
expenses as allowed by the State. Consequently, all expenses ini excess of this amount are absorbed by
the Mortgage Insurance Program Fund.

Operating Revenue Exnense.

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues in the Mortgage Insurance Fund include fees received from providing services, insurance
premiums and interest income on notes receivable, Operating revenues in the NextGen Administration

I3

Fund and other proprietary funds include fees received from providing services.
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Operating expenses in the Mortgage Insurance Fund and the NextGen Administration Fund include, as

applicable, salaries and related benefits, other operating expenses, provision for losses on insured loans,
scholarships, matching contnbut:ons, grants and rebates. Operating expenses in the other proprietary
funds are for loan processing services. Operating expenses for all proprietary funds are the costs of

providing the services and operating all programs. All revenues and expenses not categorized above are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Compensated Absences

It is the Autherity’s policy to permit ein_ployees to accumulate earned but unused vaeation. All vacation
pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and governmeatal fund financial
statements.

. New . dccounting Proviouncements

In March, 2012 GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.
This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as
assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that
were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This Statement also prevides other financial reporting
guidance related to the impact of the financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of fésources, such as changes in'the determination of the major fund calculations and
limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations. The provisions of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The
Authenty is currently evaluating the impact, if any, this guidance will have on its financial statements.

In June 2011 GASB issued Statement No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This Statement provides financial reporting guidance
for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. This Statement amends the net
asset-reporting requirements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred. inflows of
resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that
measure as net position, rather than net assets. The provisions of this Statement are effective for
financial statements for years beginning after December 15, 2011. The Authority is currently evaluating
the impact, if any, this guidance will have on its financial statements.

In Decernber 2010 GASB issued Statement No. 62 Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The objective of
this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and financial
reporting guidance that is included in the following prenouncements issned on or before November 30,
1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements:

1. Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations
. Accounting Principles Board Opinions
3. Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’
(AICPA) Committee on Accounting Procedure.
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This Statement also supersedes Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds arid Other Governmental Entities That Use Praprietary Fund Accounting, thereby eliminating
the election provided in that Statement for enterprise funds and business-type activities to apply post-
November 30, 1989 FASB Statements and Interpretations that do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. However, those entities can continue te apply, as other accounting literature, post-
November 30, 1980 FASB pronouncements that do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements, including this Statement. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
financial statements for years beginning afer December 15, 2011. The Authority is currently evaluating
the impact, if any, this guidance will have on its financial statements.

In November 2010 GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. The objective of this Statement is to improve
financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity. The requirements of Statement No. 14,
The Financial Reporting Entity, and the related financial reporting requirements of Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis ~ for State and Local
Governments, were amended to better meet user needs and to address reporting entity issues that have
arisen since the issuance of those Statements. ‘

This Statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the finaneial reporting
entity. For organizations that previously were required to be included as component units by mesting
the fiscal dependency criterion, a financial benefit or burden relationship also would need to be present
between the primary government and that organization for it to be included in the reporting entity as a
component unit; Further, for organizations that do not meet the financial accountability criteria. for
inclusion as component units but that, nevertheless, should be inclnded because the primary
government’s management determines that it would be misleading to exclude them, this Statement
clarifies the manner in which that determination should be made and the types of relationships that
generally should be considered in making the determination. '

This Statement also amends the criteria for réporting component units as if they were part. of the
primary government (that is, blending) in certain circumstances. For component units that currently are
blended based on the “substantively the same governing body™ criterion, it additionally. requires that
(1) the primary government and the component unit have a financial benefit or burden. relationship or
(2) management (below the level of the elected officials) of the primary government have operational
responsibility (as defined in paragraph 8a) for the activities of the component unit. New criteria also are
added to require blending of component units whese total debt outstanding is expected to be repaid
entirely or almost entirely with resources of the primary government. The blending provisions are
amended to clarify that funds of a blended component unit have the same financial reporting
requirements as a fund of the primary government. Lastly, additional reporting gnidance is provided for
blending a component unit if the primary government is a business-type activity that uses a single
column presentation for financial reporting. This Statement also clarifies the reporting of equity
interests in legally separate organizations. It requires a primary government to report its equity interest
in a component unit as an asset.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for years beginning after June 15,
2012. The Authority currently does not report any component units and as a result the Statement will
not currently impact the Authority.
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Cash and Investmehts

The Authotity maintains a cash and- investment peel that is available for use by its various fuads.
Interest earnings are atlocated to the various funds based upon each fund’s average monthly balance.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amounts, which represent both fair value and cost, of cash and cash equivalents for the
Authority at Yune 30, 2012 are presented below:

Cash held in demand depesit accounts and on-hand $ 2,632,221

Money market accounts and repurchase agreements : 2,882,205
Total carrying amount of deposits 5,514,426

Amounts held in State of Maine Treasurer’s Cash Pool (consisting
of cash and cashi equivalents, repurchase agreements, Certificates
of Deposit, U.S. investinents and corporate bonds) 27.742.532

Of the total carrying amount of deposits of $5,514,426 at June 30, 2012, the corresponding- bank
balances were $6,123,731. The difference between the carrying amounts of deposits and bank balances
consists primarily of checks issned but not cashed and a deposit in transit. The amount of bank balances
covered by Federal depositery insurance was $1,654,817 at Junhe 30, 2012, leaving $4,468,914
uninsured, of which $1,457,322 was collateralized by Repurchase Agreements issued by Bangor
Savings Bank in the Authority’s name.

The Authority invests monies that are not needed for immediate use. pnman!y with the State of Maine.

The State of Maine sponsors an internal investment pool (the Treasurer’s Cash Pool). The Authority’s
participation is voluntary. The State of Maine Treasurer’s Cash Pool is primarily comprised of
investment vehicles with short maturities and management of the Authority characterizes  the
investments within the pool as low risk. The State of Maine’s Treasurer’s Cash Pool is not rated by
external rating agencies. ‘The Authority’s management considers this investment vehicle a money
market instrument and generally carries the amounts in the pool at cost.

Included in cash and cash equivalents on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets is $7,691,988 held in
the Authority’s name in the State of Maine Treasurer’s Cash Pool and $826,153 held-at a bank in the
Authority’s name.

At June 30, 2012, the Authority’s management had reserved $544,467 of cash to fund a moral
obligation capital reserve for certain small business mortgage loans and the costs of property
maintenance related to an acquired property (see note 6). The Authority’s management has also
designated $544,467 of the Mortgage Insurance Program net assets as a reserve for these matters.
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2, Cash and Investments (Continued)

A summary of the fair values of investment securities as of June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Cash management funds ' $ 3,220,642
U.S. Treasury obligations 6,855,518
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprise bonds 37,673,605
State and Municipal Bonds 3,384,022
Merrill Lynch principal plus portfolio 4,511
Corporate bonds 9 7.52'3'47

60,890,645
Less: investments recorded in statement of fiduciary net assets 13.706.698
Investinents recorded in statement of net assets $47,183.947

The maturities or repricings of debt securities at June 30, 2012 are as follows:

2013 2014 - 2017 2018 —2022 Total
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 3,773,488 § 3,082,030 $ - $ 6,855,518
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises (FHLB, FNMA, etc.) 7,152,875 22,682,582 7,838,148 37,673,605
State and municipal bonds - - 3,384,022 - - .3,384,022
Corporate bonds ) 2,.278.835 7.473.512 - 9,752,347

$13.205.198 $36,622.146 $.1838,148 $57.665.492

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call er
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

The scheduled maturities or repricings of debt securities which are callable at June 30, 2012 are as
follows: o

2013 20142017 2018 —2022 Total
U.S. Government-sponsored

enterprises (FHLB, FNMA, etc.)  $1.035.210 $4.824346  $1.838.148 $13.607.704

The Authority is authorized to invest funds not needed currently to meet its obligations with the
Treasurer of the State of Maine or in any such manner as provided for by law.

Included in investment income for the year ended June 30, 2012, is $252,695 of net unrealized losses
from the change in market value of investment securities.

Interest Rate Risk: The Authority manages interest rate risk according to its investment policy by
generally prohibiting investments in securities maturing more than 10 years from the date of purchase.
Specifically, a minimum of 25% of investable funds (including cash) will be invested in securities with
a maturity of one year or less; a maximum of 75% will be invested in securities with a maturity of one
to five years; and a maximum of 25% will be invested in securities with a maturity of five years to ten
years.
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Cash and In%estments‘ {(Continued)

The Authoriify places the vast majority of its investments in short-term investments such as those in the -

State Treasurers Cash Pool. U.S. Government-sponsored enterprise bond purchases are laddered =

according to maturities in order to balance interest rate risk.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will net fulfilf its
obligations to the Authority. The Authority’s investment policy limits its investments to those with high
credit quality such as U.S. Treasury Obligations and U.S. Gevernment-sponsored enterprises, as rated

~ by rating ageneies such as Moody's (minimum rating of Aa3) or Standard and Poor’s (mm:mum rating

of AA-), guaranteed investment contracts backed by high credit quality insuranee companies or letters
of credit, or investment in FFELP student loans.

At June 30, 2012, the ratings for investments in debt securities are summarized as follows. These
ratings were as of June 30, 2012 and are not necessarily the ratings that existed at the time of purchase.

Issuer Rating Fair Value
U.S. Treasury obligations - AA+ $ 6,855,518
U.8. government-sponsored enterprises’’ AA+ 37,673,605
Corporate bonds AAA 2,G20,180
Corporate bonds AA+ 4,556,252
Corporate bonds AA 1,060,190
Corporate bonds AA- 1,608,540
Corporate bonds ' At 507,185
State and municipal bonds : AAA 1,067,960
State and municipal bonds AA 2,316,062
Other ‘ N/A 4,511
$57,670.003

M Includes FHLMC, FHLB, FFCB, FNMA

Concentration of Credit Risk: The Authority’s investment policy restricts investments to prescribed
categories and the Authority closely monitors its concentration to any one issuer through consultation
with its investment adviser, which monitors the credit quality of the issuers.
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Cash and Investments (Continu

In accordance with the investment policy, tie investments in securities will not exceed the following
maximurn limits in each of the categories listed below as a percentage of the total portfolio.

Maximum of the
Total Portfolie
Maine State Treasurer’s Cash Pool 100%
U.S. Treasury ' 100
Federal Instrumentalities : 85
Repurchase Agreements 85
Prime Commercial Paper 50
Money Market Mutudl Funds 25
Certificates of Deposit 40
Tax Exempt Obligations . 20
Corporate Bonds : 20
Government Bond Funds 20
FFELP Loans - 40

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, or for
investments the failure of a counterparty, the Authiority’s deposits or investments may not be returned to
it. The Authority’s policy to manage the custodial risk of its deposits is to have the underlying
investments held by its agent in the nominee’s name. The Authority’s investments in‘bonds are held by
the Authority’s agent in the agent’s nominee’s name. The Autherity’s investment advisor monitors the
agent’s credit quality.

Notes Receivable

The following is a summary of notes receivable at June 30, 2012:

Mortgage Insurance Program:
6.0% note, due fiscal 2012 $ 313,071
Various notes receivable . 3471

316,542

Notes receivable in the Revolving Fund:
Underground Oil Storage Replacement Program 1,688,471
Economic Recovery Program, net 7,510,370
Educators for Maine Program 5,037,292
Health Professions Loan Program 10,176,120
Regional Economic Development Revolving Loan Program 96,020
Intermediary Relending Program, net 211,692
Maine Heatth Access Foundation Loan Program ' 90.446
24.810.411
Total notes receivable, net _ $25,126.953
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.. Notes Receivable (Continued

An allowance for losses on notes receivable has been established for the Economic Recovery Program
Fund; to consider potential losses. The allowance is netted against the notes receivable balances for the
program. As of June 30, 2012, the allowance had a balance of $5,997,781. Because the Economic
Recovery Program Fund is a state revolving lean program administered by the Authority, there is no
effect on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances for the change in the
allowance for losses for this Fund. The allowance account is off-set against amounts held under
revolving loan program accourits.

The Authority has established an allowance account to absorb probable losses on loans héld under the
Intermediary Relending Program. The amount of the allowance and the provision for losses is
determined by management’s evaluation of the loan portfolic. The following is the activity in the
allowance for losses on loans during the year ended June 30, 2012:

Beginning balance $ 36,429
Provision for losses (recovery) (15.867)
Ending balance , $_20.562

Security on the Mortgage Insurance Program. nates generally includes a mortgage on the underlying
property or other tangible business assets. Notes: receivable under the Underground Oil Storage
Replacement, Economic Recovery Loan; Regional Economic Development Revolving Loan and
Intermediary Relending Program are secured by various property and equipment and in some cases, are
unsecured. The other notes for educational purposes are unsecured. Notes receivable, other: than these
in the Mortgage Insurance Program, bear interest from 0% to 10.25%, and are due on various dates up
to 2037.

Note receivable in the Agency Funds at June 30, 2012 are as foilows:

Potato Marketing Improvement Fund — net $5,854,055
Agriculture Marketing Loan Fund 5,595,912
Nutrient Management Fund 464,485
Kim Wallace Adaptive Equipment Loan Program Fund — net 3,509,639

An allowance for losses on notes receivable has been established for the Potato Marketing Improvement
Fund (PMIF) and the Kim Wallace Adaptive Equipment Loan Program Fund (KWAELPF), to consider
potential losses. The allowance is net against the notes receivable balances for the program. As of
June 30, 2012, the allowanoe for the PMIF and KWAELPF was $788,198 and $209,602, respectively.
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012

Allowance for Losses on Insured Loans

The Authority has established an allowance account to absorb probable losses on the commercial loans
it insures (see note 5). The amount of the allowance and the provision for losses is determined by
management’s evaluation of the insured portfolio. The following is the activity in the allowance for
losses on insured commercial loans during the year ended June 30, 2012:

Beginning balance $14,978,843
Default payments (4,339,945)
Provision for losses - 1,581,559
Recoveries on prior. default payments 14,822
Ending balance | $12,235.279

The Authority is insuring loans made by financial institutions to qualifying businesses under its various
insurance programs. The Authority is contingently liable for the insured portion of payments due on
these loans. At June 30; 2012, the Authority had insurance outstanding for commercial loans under the
Loan Insurance Program totaling approximately $83,390,000.

At June 30, 2012, the Authority was insuring loans with an-aggregate outsmndiﬂg principal balance
approximating $4,927,000 which were ninety or more days delinquent. The aggregate insured balahce
of these loans was approximately $2,621,000 at June 30, 2012,

The Authority’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other parties is equal to
the amount insured including the Authority’s share of expenses and any accrued interest. The amount
and nature of collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and
equipment. Insurance is extended after a review of the subject’s creditworthiness, among other
considerations.

In addition, the Authority has entered into commitments to insure loans at some foture date. At June 30,
2012, these commitments under the Loan Insurance Program were approximately $13,032,000.

Substantially all of the Authority’s loan customers and loan insurance participants are located in the

State of Maine. The only significant concentrations of credit risk in the Authority’s loan portfolio at
June 30, 2012, are for the forest products industry and for geographical concentration.
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012

Cred!t Rlsk {Contmued)

The Authority has leglslatwe authority to incur Full Faith and Credit Obligations and Moral Obligations
of the State of Maine in an aggregate amount not to exceed $840,000,000 at June 30, 2012. Such

insurance obhgattons are detailed below:

Authorized Qutstanding
Full Faith and Credit of the State of Maine: '
Commercial Insurance Authority $ 90,000,060 $60,868,271
Veterans Mortgage Insurance Authority 4,000,000 610,059
Higher Education Bonds 4,000,000 -
Moral Obligation of the State of Maine: '
Commercial Loan Insurance 150,000,000 21,911,402
Major Business Expansion Projects 120,000,000 -
Workers Conpensation Residual Market Projects . 57,600,600 -
Solid Waste Bonds - 50,000,000 -
Supplemental Student:Loan Program 50,000,000 -
Transmission Facilities Projects 100,000,000 - =
Waste Metor Oil Revenue Fund 35,000,000 13,115,000
Natural Gas Pipeline andEnergy Distribution Prejects * 180.000.000 - -
Total Moral Obligation 742,000,000 35,026,402
Total authorized and committed $.840.000.000 . $96,504,732

* Consists of not more than $150,000,000 for loans and up to $36,000,000 for use of bond proceeds to
fund capital reserve funds for revenue obligations secirrities.

The Authority carries insurance to cover its exposure to various risks of loss excluding losses on loan
insurance. There were no significant uninsured losses during 2612 and 2011.

Acquired Property

The Authority holds title to land that it acquired in the course of a bankruptcy proceeding. The property
is carried at no-value in the Authority’s Statement-of Net Assets. The land was previously owned by a
company that operated a tannery and apparently vsed the land as a site for dispesal of its industrial
waste. The Authority takes the position that it is not lidble for clean-up costs at the site because it
acquired title to the property involuntarily. However, it has entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding with the Maine Department of Environmental Protection and the Federal Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) pursuant to which it has or will pay a portion of the past and future clean up
costs on the site and has undertaken’ongoing site maintenance responsibilities. The EPA has formally
de-listed the site so that it is no longer considered an active Comprehensive Environmental Response,

Clean-up and Liability Act (CERCLA) site, but the site remains under the oversight of the Maine
Department of Environmental Protection (MEDEP).
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012

Aeguired Prope Continued

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2012, is $144,000 accrued by
management of the Authority to record potential costs associated with site protection and monitering
functions for which the Authority may be held liable.. The Authority may be liable for additional
payments if there is an extraordinary event on the property. The Autherity’s legal counsel! is unable to
estimate an amount or range of possible liability at this time.

The MEDEP has informally notified the Authority that if contaminants migrate onto and contaminate
adjacent residential water supplies, the Authority should assume mitigation costs. The mitigation costs
are undetermined at this time. The Authority continues to assert that it is not liable. The Authority’s
legat counsel is unable to estimate an amount or range of a satisfactory settlement at this time for these
matters.

Notes Pavable
Notes Payable

Notes payable consists of the following at June 30, 2012:

Note payable!”, interest fixed at 1.0%, principal and interest payments due until 2025.

Assets of the Intermediary Relending Loan Program are pledged to secure the note. $ 762,733
Note payable®, interest only payments fixed at 1.0%, principal and interest due

at the option of the lender. Assets of the Maine Health Access Foundation ’

Loan Program are pledged to secure the note. 750,000

1,512,733
Less: currentportion of notes payable 806,048
Noncurrent portion of notes payable $__706.685

The proceeds from the note payable™ are required to be used to originate notes receivable in the
Intermediary Relending Loan Program, which is included in the Revolving Fund and is a governmental
type fund. The proceeds from thie note payable® are required to be used to originate notes receivable in
the Maine Health Access Foundation Loan Program, which is included in the Revolving Fund and is a
governmental type fond.

The debt service requirements for notes payable through 2017 and in five-year increments thereafter to
maturity for the Authority, are as follows: '

Year(s Principal  Interest Total

2013 $ 806,048 $11,377 § 817425
2014 56,608 7,067 63,675
2015 57,174 6,501 - 63,675
2016 57,746 5929 63,675
2017 ' 58,323 5,352 63,675
2018 - 2022 300,483 17,892 318,375
2023 - 2026 176.351 3.426 179.777

$1.512.733 $57.544 §$1.70.277
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 36, 2012

7. Notes'z:-Pagable (Continued)

9.

The above debt schedule assumes repayment of the $750,000 note in 2012.

The following summarizes the debt activity for the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Notes
Payable

Balance at beginning of year : $1,568,182
Principal reductions (55,449)
Balance at end of year ' $1,512,733
Capital Assets _
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:

June 30, ~ June 30,

2011 Additions  Disposals 2012

Building and improvements § 1,997,247 § - $ - § 1,997,247
Computer and office equipment 1,166,149 111,280 (54,313) 1,223,116
Software development 1.143.363 - - 1,143,363

4,306,759 111,280 (54,313) 4,363,726

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Building and improvements (764,295) (91,983) - (856,278)
Computer and office equipment (868,186)  (181,727) 54,313 (995,600)
Seftware development (511,136) (202.971) - (714,107)
Total accumulated depreciation (2,143.617)  (476.681) 54313 (2.5 _.§5,985)
$.2163.142 $065401) $___—. $_L797.74]

Depreciation expense of $476,681 was charged to various funds as part of allocated operating expenses.

Transactions with the State of Maine

Amounts received in governmental and business-type activities from the State of Maine for the year
ended June 30, 2012, are summarized below:

Received for grant programs $10,069,742
Received for loan programs , 953,939
General State of Maine appropriations 643,048
Reserve fund transfers 1,000,600
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012 :

The Authority received a $1,000,000 reserve fund balance transfer from the State of Maine. The Maine
Revised Statutes provide that, if certain conditions are met, the State will transfer to the Authority
funds, as available, from the State’s Loan Insurance Reserves, up'to $1,000,000 per fiscal year. In
addition, in 2012, the State of Mairnie passed- legislation which required-the Authority to pay the State
$5,000,000 from the Mortgage Insurance Fund. The Authority has reflected this amount in the
accompanying financial statements at June 30, 2012. $2,000,000 had been paid and the remaining
$3,000,000 was recorded as dccounts payable and accrued liabilities in the accompanying Mortgage
Insurance Fund financial statements. In addition, the Authority received $2,843,979 from the State of
Maine’s Waste Motor Oil Revenue Fund. Such amounts were used-to pay principal and interest on the
Waste Motor Oil Revenue Bonds and cligible costs associated with the Waste Motor 0il Disposal Site
Remediation Program.

Maine College S@!‘rggs Program Fund

The Authority administers the State of Maine’s Maine College Savings Program Fund (the Fund). The
Maine College Savings Program (the Program), alse known as the NextGen College Investing Plan or
NextGen, is the primary program of the Fund which was established in accordance with Chapter 417-E
of Title 20-A of the Maine Revised Statutes Anmotated of 1964, as amended (the Act), to encourage the

jnvestment of funds to be used for qualified higher education expemses at institutions of higher

education. The Program is designed to comply with the requirements for treatment as-a qualified tuition

. program under Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as asnended. The Act authorizes the

Authority to administer the Program and act as administrator of the Fund.

Until June 30, 2012, the Fund was held by the Treasurer of the State of Maine (the Treasurer). Pursuant
to a change in the Act which became effective September 28, 2011, the Fund will be held by the
Authority beginning July 1, 2012, and the Authority shall invest it under the direction of and with the
advice of the seven member Advisory Committee on College Savings. Effective July 1, 2012, the
Authority’s financial statements will reflect Program assets as held in a private purpose trust fund.

The Program had approximately $6,014,000,000 in net asset value at June 30, 2012. The Authority and
the Treasurer have entered into a management agreement with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner and Smith
Incorporated to manage the Program and invest the Fund. As the primary consideration for its
administrative duties, the Authority receives a monthly fee at an annual rate up to 0.15%, until June 28,
2012, of the average daily net asset value of certain Program assets. Effective June 29, 2012, the
maximum annual rate was reduced to 0.11%. The administrative fees earned were $8,573,222 in fiscal
year 2012, and are recorded as revenue in the NextGen Administration Fund.

Administrative fees are used to provide benefits as set forth in the Act and the Program rule. Program
benefits to Maine accounts (accounts owned by Maine residents or naming designated beneficiaries who
are Maine residents) include fee rebates and matching grants. Program benefits also include
scholarships to Maine students. Program benefit expenses recorded in the NextGen Administration
Fund were $5,892,033 in fiscal year 2012. .Afier matching grants are awarded, they no longer are
included in the assets of the NextGen Administration Fund, but are held in the Maine College Savings
Program Fund. Matching grants, including earnings thereon, are not the property of account
participants or designated beneficiarics unless and until withdrawn for qualified higher education
expenses of designated beneficiaries.
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012

Transactions with the State of Maine (Continued

Similarly, included in the Maine College Savings Program Fund, and not reflected in the assets of the
NextGen Administration Fund in these financial statements, are HACC grants awarded by the Alfond
Scholarship Foundation to Maine resident babies named as de31gnated beneficiaries on NextGen
accounts by the baby’s first birthday. HACC grants, including eamings thereon, are not the property of
account participants or designated beneficiaries and may only be withdrawn for qualified higher
education expenses of designated beneficigrics. These grants are designated as restricted gifts to the
Authierity until so withdrawn. If not withdrawn within a proseribed time period the funds are forfeited
and must-be redistributed by the Authority for the benefit of another eligible designated beneficiary or,
if so requested, returned to-the grantor. HACC funds are recorded in the NextGen Administration Fund
as grant revenue and, upon the conditional allocation to account participants, as grant expense

Revenue Bonds

In accordance with the Act, the Authority is authorized to assist; review and approve the issuance of
Revenue Obligation Securities, which enable applicants, public or private, to finance projects through
the issnance of tax exempt securities by the Authority or municipalities. Oceasionally, the Authority
insures the repaymerit of a portion of the mortgage loans securing these bonds.

Each series of these bonds are liiited obligations of the Authority, separately secured by a pledge of the
revenues and collateral. derived in connection with the mortgage loan financed from the proceeds of
such series (conduit debt). All costs of originating the bonds; including underwriter’s discount; are paid
by the borrowers. The principal and interest paid by each borrower is at an amount equal to the amount
of principal and interest due to the bondholders. Because the bonds represent only a contingent liability
to the Authority, in that the Authority is not responsible for payment of the bonds unless- the borrower
defanlts on an insured bond, the amount of bonds payable, the related mortgages receivable and the cash
held in trust have not been recorded on the Authority’s Statement of Net Assets.

In fiseal 2010, the Authority issued Waste Motor Oil Revenue Bonds to provide for certain response
costs related to a waste motor oil disposal site. These bonds are special limited obligations of the
Authority, payable solely from revenues accumulated in the State of Maine Waste Motor Oil Revenue
Fund. Amounts in the Waste Motor Qil Revenue Fund are expected to. be derived principally from
payments of a premium on the purchase within the State of Maine of specified motor vehicle oil. The
bonds do not constitute 2 debt or pledge of faith and credit of the Authority or the State, and
accordingly, have not been reported in the accompanying financial statements. At June 30, 2012, Waste
Motor Oil Revenue Bonds outstanding totaled $13,115,000.
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~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-

June 30, 2012

Deferred.-ComEengtion and Pengion Pian

The Authority offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all Authority employess, permits the employees to
defer a portion of their salary until fiture: years. The Authority does not match any deferred
compensation under this plan. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or an unforeseeable emergency. The Authority has established a trust for
the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. As a resuit, the plan assets and
corresponding liability are not presented in the Authority’s Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2012,

Currently; the Authority offers a Simplified Employee Pension Plan to its employees. All contributions
made by the Authority go into this plan. Pension expense was $218,722 in fiscal year 2012.

The Authority holds and administers the Federal Student Loan Reserve Fund for the U.S. Department of
Education. The Higher Education Amendments of 1998 (the Amendments) required thie creation of a
Federal Student Loan Reserve Fund (the Federal Fund) and a Guarantee Agency Operating Fund (the

" Qperating Fund). Under this legislation, substantially all existing reserve funds, securities and other

liquid: assets were deposited -and transferred into thie. Federal Studerit Loan Reserve Fund. Ongoing
deposits into the Federal Student Loan Reserve Fund include reinsurance payments, the complement of
reinsurance on default collections, insurance premiums charged to borrowers and interest income.
According to the Amendments, the Federal Student Loan Reserve Fund is the property of the Federal
government (the U.S. Departmerit of Education or DE) and can only be used to pay lender claims and a
default aversion fee to the Operating Fund. The Federal Student Loan Reserve Fund is treated as an
agency fiand within the Authority’s Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets.

The Amendments also created a Guarantee Agency Operating Fund, which is the sole property of the
Authority. This fund is used to account for the activities of the FFELP that are outside the Federal
Fund. The fund can be used for the administration of the programs authorized by the Act, as amended,
and other related activities under the statute. Prior to July 1, 2010, deposits into this fund included a
processing fee paid by DE on new loans disbursed (origination fee). Currently a portfolio maintenance
fee is paid by DE on ail outstanding loans, a default aversion fee is paid from the Federal Student Loan
Reserve Fund and collections on defaulted loans after subtracting amounts to be paid to DE are
deposited into this fand. The Federal Guarantee Agency Operating Fund is a governmental fund of the
Authority. :

Total outstanding guarantees issued under the FFELP approximated $689,828,000 at June 30, 2012. A

portion of defaults on FFELP loan guarantees are paid by DE through the Federal Student Loan Reserve
Fund. At June 30, 2012, the reserve level was approximately $3,254,000.
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BAKER|NEWMAN |NOYES

Certified Pubilic Accountanis

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To Board of Directors
Finance Autherity of Maine

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information -
combining Schedule of Fiduciary Net Assets — is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of managemeiit and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial staternents. The information has been subjected to the auditing prcccdures applied in the audit of
the finaricial statements and certain additional procedures including comparing and reconeiling such

- information directly to the uniderlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements

or the financial statements themselves; and other additional procedures in-accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of Amierica; In our opinion, the information is falrly stated in all
material réspects in relation to the basic financial statemenits as a whele. -

LBahs Yot Ves

Portland, Maine Limited Liability Company

~ October 18, 2012

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC
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FINANCE AUTHORITY OF MAINE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investmentts

Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Notes receivable, net

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Due to the U.S, Department of Education
- Amouns hield for State of Maine
under revolving loan programs

Total liabilities
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AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 2012
Federal Potato
StudentLoan  Marketing
Reserve Improvement
Fund. Fund
$3,033,718  $ 2,305,854
- 5,719,095
220,705 -
- 193,021
= 5.854.055
$ - $ 9,852
3,254,423 -
= 14,122,173
$3254423  S14,132.025

Agriculture
Marketing
Loan
Fund

$ 578,638

1,450,224 .

5.595.912

$7:624,774

$ 4873

7,619.901

$1.624.774

Smali
. Enterprise
Growth
Fund

$1,412,407
3,539,869

$4.952.276

4,952.276

$4.952.276



Nutrient
Manageiment
Fund

$ 13,250

Payroll
Processing
Insurance
Fund-

$156,861
393,137

Kim
Wallace
Adaptive
Equipment

Loan Program
__Fund

$1,009,892
2,531,066

6,672
3,509.639

$ 13,390

7.043.879

Fund

Insurance
Réview

Board

Fund

$2,826
7,082

$.2.908
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Occu-
pational
Safety
Program
Fund

$2,211

$2211

Northern
Maine
Transmission

Corporation

$2,484
6,225

SCHEDULE 1

Total
Agency
Fund

$ 8,518,141
13,706,698
220,705
199:693
15.424.491

$ 41,552
3,254,423

34,773,153
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